
PASSENGERS OF THE BARQUE EMIGRANT 

List compiled from: 

• embarkation list  

• arrival lists of 9/10 August and 26 September 1850 from microfilms held at SLQ 

• transcript of arrival list of 26 September, held at QSA 

• Colonial Secretary’s letters relating to Moreton Bay and Queensland, received 1822-1860, held at SLQ, reel A2.21 

• Trove newspapers 

• Ancestry.com 

• Peter Hodge’s website https://members.tip.net.au/~phodge/list.htm  

• Bothwell, K. (1998).  The Voyage and Quarantine of the Emigrant: 1850. [Brisbane, QLD]: K. Bothwell.  
• Various birth, death and marriage offices 

• Various other sources as indicated 

Key: 

• Orange cell indicates that passenger died in quarantine 

• Yellow cell indicates that passenger died at sea 

 

Families 

Name Age/DOB Calling Native place  Parents and 
background 

Educ
ation 

Religio
n 

 Notes from Quarantine/Passenger lists/ Col Sec letters/  
And Fate after 1850 

BAKER, Thomas 22 Carpenter Nailsea, Co. 
Somerset, 
Eng 

Parents James 
and Mary in 
Somerset 

Both C of E Settled in Kilmore, Vic,  
Had 11 children 
Died of pneumonia in 1903, aged 75; had lived in Victoria for 58 years. [Death certificate]  
Obituary in Kilmore Free Press, 5 November 1903, p.2: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/57959537 
“a true type of the honest, honorable and straight forward Englishman” 

BAKER, Amelia 21 Wife Nailsea, Co. 
Somerset, 
Eng 

Parents James & 
Rosannah Jones, 
both living in 
Nailsea 

Both C of E Settled in Kilmore, Vic,  
Had 11 children 
Died in 1918 

BALL, Joseph William 44 Laborer London, Eng Died 27 Aug in 
quarantine 

Both C of E 14 Aug 1850 was landed at Quarantine ground with low stage fever; had helped Dr Mitchell on board with sick and dying; kept working when he 
got typhus himself. See Col Sec letters 

BALL, Mary 41 Wife Scotland Husband 
(Joseph) died in 
quarantine. 
Step-daughter 
(Mary Anne Ball) 
died in 
quarantine. 
Daughter 
(Elizabeth 
Wade) died 
drowned in 
Quarantine 

Both C of E Born c 1810 or 1811 in Scotland (possibly Falkirk where her parents married) 
1820: living in Middlesex where her brother William was born 
1825, 13 June: Mary Shanks married Frederick Whittenbury at Greenwich 
1831, 8 June: Mary Elizabeth Whittenbury born 
1833, 27 May at St Dunstan, Stepney: John Wade (widow) married Mary Whittenbury 
1834, 24 Aug: Emma Wade and Mary Elizabeth Wade (formerly Whittenbury) were Baptised at Rainham. 
Before 1841: John Wade died (assumed) and Mary started living in Holborn, Middlesex, as a housekeeper for Joseph William Ball [see 1841 
census] 
1849: Mary married Joseph William Ball [marriage cert] 
1850: 14 Aug 1850 Mary was landed at Q ground with rising fever; 26 Sept was convalescent. Husband Joseph Ball died in quarantine 27 Aug   
1851, 9 Aug: Mary Ball married Edward Wheeler in Brisbane 

• Edward Wheeler was charged with assaulting Edward Jones in May 1854 http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3715090/542514 ; 
see also QSA ID51885 

• Edward Was a farmer: Sold land in Stanley to his brother-in-law William Shanks in Sept 1863, both men listed as farmers. He bought the 
land in Aug 1863 for over 50 pounds but sold it for 10 shillings a couple of weeks later. See QSA Item ID1959223, Legal agreements 

• Died sometime between March 1866 and Mary's death on 15 Dec 1868 (according to her death notice) 
1868, 15 Dec: Mary Shanks/Whittenbury/Wade/Ball/Wheeler died in South Brisbane of ‘Gastric fevers’. Death notice: 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/1324468  
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BALL, Mary Anne 23 Daughter London, Eng Died 20 Sep in Q Both C of E Hospital attendant. Nursed her father until he died. 

BLOXAM, Thomas 35 Laborer Co. Galway, 
Ireland 

Wife, Fanny 
(née PAGE), died 
at Sea 
5 Aug; Thomas 
in hospital on 26 
Sept list. 
Parents John & 
Letitia (nee 
Williams), both 
dead; 

N C of E Was a weaver in Mountshannon, Inniscealtra  
1850: Shortly after their arrival in the colony, Captain Griffin of Whiteside in the Pine Rivers district employed a shepherd by the name of 

Bloxam; this was probably the widower Thomas. Griffin and his neighbour Joyner also employed young Ann as a servant. Before long, Thomas 

(senior) moved to Moggill Creek, where he worked on a cattle station and later as a timber-getter.  

1882, Sept: Died at Brookfield, QLD; buried in Brookfield cemetery. 

 

    BLOXAM, Fanny 
(nee Page) – not on 
lists 

32 (plaque) Wife of 
Thomas 

 Co. Galway, 
Ireland 

Died at sea 5 
Aug; Died after 
entering Bass 
Strait 

  C of E  

                   John   14 Laborer  Co. Galway, 
Ireland 

Mother died at 
Sea 

R C of E 1836: Born Mountshannon, parish of Inniscealtra, Galway 
After 1850: Worked on Gracemere Station, Rockhampton (stockman). Also at Roma, Toowoomba, Blackall, Ipswich, Indooroopilly. 
28 Dec 1863: married at Rockhampton to Ellen Farmer of Dublin 
Had 3 children 
Separated from his wife; living in Gold Creek (near Brisbane) by 1900 
His wife had John taken back to face the court in Rockhampton to answer to charges of desertion: 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/52586958 
23 Feb, 1908: wife died at Rockhampton 
28 April 1905: admitted to Dunwich Benevolent Asylum. Notes from QSA Item ID298716 Register - admissions, benevolent asylum (1903-1905): 

• Age 70 

• Ward 27 

• Register No. 5473 

• Religion RC (?) 

• Nationality Ireland 
Discharged 1905 (QLD Gov Gazette Jul-Dec 1905 p.194) 
In ‘Living pioneer colonists’ issue of The Queenslander, 7 Aug 1909, p.63 http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/21829670/2496695 No. 330 
(below) 

 
20 June 1928: died aged 93 at Dunwich Benevolent Asylum; buried in asylum cemetery. 

                   Anne   12 Daughter Co. Galway, 
Ireland 

Mother died at 
Sea 

R C of E Born 1828, Mountshannon, Inniscealtra 
1851-1851: servant to Griffins on their station Whiteside and Joyners at Samsonvale, both in Pine Rivers  

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/52586958
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/21829670/2496695


December 1852: Ann was charged with stealing a looking-glass from her employer, Jane Griffin. The case was dismissed and Ann pursued the 
wages owed to her. The matter was settled out of court. (QSA Item 518885: Depositions)  
March 1854: married Patrick Pacey in Brisbane 
Took up land at Moggill near Ann’s father; 
Had 14 children 
12 March 1902: she died at her home in Taringa, Brisbane, and is buried at Brookfield with her husband. 

                   Thomas   10 Son Co. Galway, 
Ireland 

Mother died at 
Sea 

R C of E Married in Brisbane but later moved north with his family.  
Had 8 children, born in Maryborough and Rockhampton and then Clermont.  
When Thomas was only 45, he was in Brisbane when an aneurysm killed him (1886) 
He was buried in the Brookfield Cemetery. 

BRIMBLE, John 42 
[age recorded 
as 42 on 
embarkation; 
incorrectly 
transcribed as 
48 on arrival 
document] 

Gardener Kingston 
Deverill, Co. 
Wiltshire, 
Eng 

Cousin on Board 
(Andrew 
Brimble) 

Both C of E Details on Vicki Hails’ website: http://freepages.genealogy.rootsweb.ancestry.com/~hails/thesis.htm 

• Settled at Bathurst with two surviving children 

• Died in Orange 1879 

                  Elizabeth 37 Wife Kingston 
Deverill, Co. 
Wiltshire, 
Eng 

Died in 
Quarantine 
31 Aug 

Both C of E Details on Vicki Hails’ website: http://freepages.genealogy.rootsweb.ancestry.com/~hails/thesis.htm 
 

Sophia (not on 
embarkation list) 

17 Servant Kingston 
Deverill, Co. 
Wiltshire, 
Eng 

Died at sea 28 
July; Died after 
entering Bass 
Strait 

  C of E Details on Vicki Hails’ website: http://freepages.genealogy.rootsweb.ancestry.com/~hails/thesis.htm 
Sophia was probably Andrew Brimble’s sister 

                  Lucy 12 Daughter Kingston 
Deverill, Co. 
Wiltshire, 
Eng 

Mother & 
brother died in 
Quarantine 

Both C of E Details on Vicki Hails’ website: http://freepages.genealogy.rootsweb.ancestry.com/~hails/thesis.htm 
28 April, 1854: At age 16, Lucy Jane Brimble married William Unwin, farm labourer, in Bathurst. They bought land near Millthorpe, and the pair 
established a property known as ‘Green Hills Farm’. They had no children of their own but adopted two sons.  
Lucy died on 16 July, 1915, at the age of 77 
The Unwins were well-respected members of their community. Lucy’s obituary: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/117837795  

                  Alfred   7 Son Kingston 
Deverill, Co. 
Wiltshire, 
Eng 

Mother & 
brother died in 
Quarantine 

R C of E Admitted to quarantine hospital 3 Oct 
Details on Vicki Hails’ website: http://freepages.genealogy.rootsweb.ancestry.com/~hails/thesis.htm 
Gardener 
1867: married Mary Ralph at Botany. 
6 children all born at Botany  
Later moved to Millthorpe. 
28 July, 1923: died aged 81, buried at Millthorpe 

                  Samuel   5 Son Kingston 
Deverill, Co. 
Wiltshire, 
Eng 

Died from burns 
30 Sep 1850 

N C of E  

BRIMBLE, Andrew 21 Laborer Kingston 
Deverill, Co. 
Wiltshire, 
Eng 

Parents listed as 
Andrew and 
Jane on the 
arrival list, but 
according to his 
birth and 
marriage 
records and the 
1841 census, 
they were John 

B C of E Was a witness at inquiry into Elizabeth Wade’s death. 
 
His parents’ names are recorded incorrectly on the shipping arrival list. Vicki Hails has this explanation: ‘Andrew was obviously not in good health 
at the time of his arrival and no doubt was suffering the effects of typhus fever at that time. Louisa's knowledge of Andrew's family would 
understandably be fairly limited, and this coupled with the obvious stress she would have been under at this time, could perhaps explain some of 
the inconsistency in the information recorded.’ http://freepages.genealogy.rootsweb.ancestry.com/~hails/thesis.htm#JohnBrimble  
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and Sarah; 
mother living in 
Wiltshire. Died 
in Quarantine, 
22 Oct 1850 

              Louisa/Louise
  

20 Wife/ 
Domestic 
servant 

Monkton 
Deverill, Co 
Wiltshire, 
Eng 

Husband died in 
Quarantine; 
Parents William 
and Harriet 
Stein, Living in 
Wiltshire 

B C of E Details on Vicki Hails’ website: http://freepages.genealogy.rootsweb.ancestry.com/~hails/thesis.htm 
On 14 Aug 1850, she was in the ship’s hospital recovering from childbirth when the emigrants were landed at the Quarantine station (Col Sec 
letters) 
Husband Andrew’s family (mother, brother and sister) emigrated in 1850 and settled in Newcastle; Louisa joined the there. 
10 January, 1853: Louisa Brimble nee Stone married James May, an English immigrant. They had a further ten children, James born 1854, Harriet 
born 1855, Ann born 1859, Alice born 1860, Thomas born 1864, William born 1867, John born 1872, Florence born 1874, George born 1875 and 
Edward born 1878. All were all baptised at Christchurch, Newcastle. 
 

                    Emily   2 Daughter Kingston 
Deverill, Co. 
Wiltshire, 
Eng 

Father died in 
Quarantine 

N C of E Details on Vicki Hails’ website: http://freepages.genealogy.rootsweb.ancestry.com/~hails/thesis.htm 
Grew up in Newcastle, NSW; 
23 Oct 1866: married Daniel Gurley, a mariner 
Had 3 sons 
27 Nov 1891: Died at Newcastle Hospital, buried at Stockton Cemetery. 
 

         (William)/  
       Andrew 

infant Son Born on 
board 13 Aug  
Baptised 24 
Oct at 
Dunwich (2 
days after 
father’s 
death) 

Father died in 
Quarantine 

N C of E The infant was recorded on arrival list as William (born on voyage) but he was baptised as Andrew, 3 days before his father’s death. His mother 
may have changed his name in view of his father’s sickness and imminent death. He was baptised on 24 Oct at Dunwich by Rev. Irwin. Details on 
Vicki Hails’ website: http://freepages.genealogy.rootsweb.ancestry.com/~hails/thesis.htm 
Grew up in Newcastle, NSW; 
1875: married Elizabeth Ryan  

Had 4 children; only one reached adulthood.  

A daughter, Elizabeth, died at 18, and a son, Andrew Jonathon, of bronchitis at only six months. Caroline Sophia, Andrew's youngest daughter, 

died in 1888, when she was 6 years old. She was crushed by a coal truck at the Stockton Company’s estate. Her body was taken home in such an 

‘awful state of mutilation’ that ‘the injuries when described made several jurymen most uncomfortable.’ i The doctor amputated three limbs but 

the child died shortly afterward. http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/139048359  

April 1920 Andrew died at the age of 69. He is buried with his wife in the Church of England section of Stockton Cemetery. 

 

CANNING, William 24 Draper Bath, 
Somerset, 
Eng 

Parents 
William and 
Mary Canning, 
both living in 
Bath; 
In Hospital (list 
of 26 September 
1850) 

B Baptist Had several children, born at Tenterfield and country QLD 
1895: Died at Killarney aged 69 
Obituary: Well-respected citizen:  http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/76651926  
Brother of Andrew Canning, of Royal Hotel, Killarney: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/76651955 
Superintendent of Sunday school: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/76652086  

                     Amelia 23 Wife Bath, 
Somerset, 
Eng 

Parents Thomas 
and Constantia 
Lear, both living 
in Bath; 
Died 1916; 
Daughter died in 
Quarantine 

B Baptist Had several children, born at Tenterfield and country QLD 
28 Feb, 1916: Died at ‘Bonny Doon’, Herries Street Toowoomba 
Obituary: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/83667656  

                 female child infant daughter Born on 
board 

Died in 
Quarantine 

N Baptist  

CARROL, Patrick 27 Laborer Tipperary, 
Ireland 

Parents John 
and Hannah, 
both dead; 

B RC Took up a selection in Bundamba, QLD 
Hit by train in 1886, arm was severed, died few weeks later (Bundamba)  
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/170802414  
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Sister in Sydney 
& sister (Ellen) 
on Board 

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/4483035 

                  Bridget 25 Wife/ 
Domestic 
servant 

Tipperary, 
Ireland 

Parents John & 
Mary  HECTOR, 
both living in 
Tipperary 

R RC Took up a selection in Bundamba, QLD 
July 1887: Admitted to lunatic asylum http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3474065  (Brisbane Courier 12 July 1887 p.6) 
Grieved since husband’s death, admitted to asylum. No children, widely respected – (Telegraph 12 July 1887, p.5): 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/201021308    
Died 1891, Bundamba: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/123048021   
Died as inmate of lunatic asylum at Woogaroo 1891. Bridget’s will: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/122945764   
Will: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3528773   
Funeral http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/123048021    
 

                  Elizabeth 
(Not on embarkation 
list – must have been 
left off in error. 
Present on arrival 
list) 

2 Daughter Tipperary, 
Ireland 

  N RC No record of death found. However, the child must have died in infancy; her mother’s obituary stated that she had no children. 

CHAPPLE, James  31   labourer Ermington, 
Devon, Eng 

Died at sea 18 
July 

  Wes Captain Kemp gives the date of James Chapple’s death as 15 July; Mrs Kemp 18 July 

CHAPPLE, Julia 
Nee Baker (according 
to family tree on 
Ancestry.com);  

33   Ermington, 
Devon, Eng 

Parents John 
and Susan 
Baker, both 
dead; 
Husband, James, 
died at Sea 

B Wes Was in Quarantine hospital for 7 weeks, during which time Emma Frith and Amelia Baker took care of her children; 
3 Dec 1859 married Samuel Jeffcoat, widower, in QLD 
Died 15 Sept 1862; buried in Paddington, QLD (later removed to Toowong) 
 

                    Thomas  6 Son Ermington, 
Devon, Eng 

Father died at 
Sea 

R Wes Died 1927 in QLD (Thomas John Chapple, parents James and Julia nee Baker) 
A Thomas John Chapple married a Fanny Lawrence on 8 June 1878 at Presbyterian Manse, Gympie; Thomas John Chapple and Fanney 
Symmonds had 3 children in 1879, 1880, 1885; 
Robert James b.30 Sep 1880 Gympie 
(Fanny was a widow; born Symonds, married a Lawrence, had 2 children with first husband) 

                     James  4 Son Ermington, 
Devon, Eng 

Father died at 
Sea 

N Wes 8 Sept 1866: married Caroline Burgess in Ipswich http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/123335186  
Had 7 children 
Died 1915 (BDM) 
His wife’s obituary gives some of his history: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/118661757 : ‘When the Gympie rush "broke out" Mr. 
and Mrs. Chapple, with their young daughter (now Mrs. G. S. Flay, Junction Hotel, Ipswich-road), went to the gold-field, where her husband 
subsequently acquired an interest in "The Gympie Times." then published as "The Nashville Times." Mr. Chapple became one of the most 
prominent of the citizens of the gold-field, and Mrs. Chapple shared in the activities of her husband.’ (QLD Times, 12 Nov 1913) 
See also photo in ‘Living pioneer colonists’ (number 429) http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/21829670  
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James Chapple in 1909 
The Queenslander 7 Aug 1909 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/21829670/2496695 
 

                     Robert  1 Son Ermington, 
Devon, Eng 

Father died at 
Sea 

N Wes 1873 married Julia Gallagher in Gympie: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/168910562 
Had 3 children: (BDM) 

• 1874: Thomas James 

• 1876: Ellen 

• 1878: James Baker 
Death (after long and painful illness) in Brisbane on 12 Aug 1880: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/170585242 
Benefit to raise money for his widow and children; he was a compositor http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/888425  
1880 Died aged 31 at Elizabeth st, Bris. Compositor, late of Gympie, intestate 
 

CONNOR, James 29 Laborer Tipperary, 
Ireland 

Parents Michael 
and Anne, father 
living in 
Tipperary; 
Wife died at Sea 

R Wes His niece, Mary Connor, was also on board 
 

CONNOR,  
       Mary according 
to plaque at 
Dunwich, but Ann 
according to Captain 
Kemp. Not named on 
embarkation list 
(which only names 
the ‘head’ of the 
family) so I’m not 
sure where ‘Mary’ 
came from.  

25  wife Tipperary, 
Ireland 

Died at sea 29 
July/ after 
entering Bass 
Strait 

? Wes? Captain Kemp called her ‘Anne Connor’ in report in Moreton Bay Courier 7 Sept, 1850: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3716014 

                   Michael infant Son Tipperary, 
Ireland 

Mother died at 
Sea 

N    

CUMMINS, Cornelius 33 Farm 
Laborer 

Queen's 
County, 
Ireland 

Parents 
Laurence and 
Catherine 
Cummins, both 
living in Queens 
County; 
2 Uncles in 

Both RC Settled in Bathurst, NSW. 
His first wife, Julia, died in 1853 
Married again – to Maria Dempsey, in Bathurst 1857 
June 1868: gaoled at Parramatta for receiving a stolen horse; admitted at Bathurst 27 June – sentenced to 5 years on the roads, discharged 18 
Aug 1870 (marks for conduct and industry) 
Left 11 children when he died 
Lost money in bank crisis, was sheep farmer, well respected died in Sydney,  
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Bathurst Died in Sydney 1895, buried in Bathurst – obituary: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/156704736  
On his headstone:  
"In loving memory of / Cornelius Cummins / born Queens County, Ireland / 1818 / died October 24, 1895. / Aged 77 years / also / Julia / his 
beloved wife. / Aged 36 years. / Also their beloved son / Kerin / died 1856 / aged 2 years. / Rest in Peace. / also / Beloved son, Laurence / died 
Sep ..... 1902... obscured " SECOND HEADSTONE "In loving memory of / Maria Ann Cummins / died at Fosters Valley / 18th Dec. 1920 aged 82 
years. / also / James Cummins / 23rd May 1911 aged 32 years"; 

 (née LAWLER) Judith 
(or Julia on 
headstone) 

29 Wife Queen's 
County, 
Ireland 

Parents John 
and Bridget 
Lawler, both 
dead; 
Daughter died in 
Quarantine 

R RC Died in Bathurst 1853 

                   Catherine 2 Daughter Queen's 
County, 
Ireland 

Sister died in 
Quarantine 

N RC A Catherine A. Cummings married Stephen A Donnelly at Bathurst in 1868; 
Not confirmed that this is the same woman. 

                      Bridget 1 Daughter Queen's 
County, 
Ireland 

" N RC Was indecently assaulted Dec 1859 at age 11: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/63592352. Her attacker got 18 months with hard 
labour 
See also: State Records NSW: Solicitor for Public Prosecutions and Clerk of the Peace; NRS 880, Papers and Depositions, Supreme Court Sydney 
and on Circuit 1824-1946. [9/6431] Item 1. 
In her thirties, Bridget formed a relationship with a labourer – a widower – named George Thorn. They had two children together: George, born 

in 1884 and Rosey, in 1887. They lived in Dragon Street, Warwick, where George farmed and Bridget took care of the household.  

1 July, 1916: George and Bridget married.  

4 July 1922: Bridget died having suffered for a year with a tumour in her chest. 

 

                      Eliza infant Daughter Queen's 
County, 
Ireland 

Died in 
Quarantine 

N RC  

FARMER, John 49 Farm 
Laborer 

East Langton, 
Leicestershir
e, Eng 

Parents John 
and Jane 
Farmer, both 
dead; 
Wife died in 
Quarantine 

Both C of E Was a witness at enquiry into Elizabeth Wade’s death; 7 Sep 1850 was mentioned in Kemp’s letter in MBC as ‘an aged man who was one of the 
few to help constantly with the sick while the ship was at sea’ 
10 Dec 1850 – special mention in Wickham’s report to Col Sec as a storekeeper at Q ground who worked most satisfactorily, to be paid 1 shilling 
and 6 pence per day for services 
Was keeping a brick-yard in Victoria in 1857: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/7143960 
According to Death Certificate: 

• Died 14 Oct 1865 in Essendon, Vic. 

• Occupation: carrier 

• Male, 65 years 

• Died from ‘congestion of the liver’ and  

• Had been sick for 5 weeks 

• Death was reported by his son George of Essendon 

• Buried 16 Oct 1865 at Melbourne Cemetery 

• Had lived in Moreton Bay 12 months, Sydney 12 months, Victoria 13 years 
 

                  Hester 
(Esther) nee 
Meadows 

51 (51 on 
embarkation 
list; but 45 
according to 
Col Sec 
letters) 

Wife Leicestershir
e, Eng 

Died in 
Quarantine, 10 
Sep 1850 

Both C of E  

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/156704736
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        Mary (Daughter) 25 Domestic  Allerton, (?) 
Leicestershir
e, Eng 

Mother died in 
Quarantine 

Both C of E • 1 March 1852, Mary Farmer married David Hobbs, (passenger of the Emigrant) in the Parish of St Lawrence, Sydney, in the County of 
Cumberland 

• 1852:     daughter Mary J. born in NSW (Sydney) 

• 1852:      Sept. Assault charge (fined) 

• 1853:     Baby Mary J. died 

• 1854:     son Thomas Henry born in NSW (Sydney); baptised 11 Jun 1854 - St. Lawrence Sydney, New South Wales, Australia 

• 1855:     son George Farmer Hobbs born in Vic (Bdarra) 

• 1856:     son George Farmer Hobbs died in Vic  

• 1856:     son John James Hobbs born in Vic (Ballarat East) 

• 1859: Jane born (can't find birth registration; this is taken from Mary's death certificate) 

• 1860:      son Alfred born in Vic (Inglewood) 

• 1861:     son Alfred died in Vic 

• 1868:     son John James died in Vic 
 
See also entry for David Hobbs 
Seems to have separated from her husband, who was admitted to Maitland Gaol, being of 'unsound mind' in 1883 and later admitted to 
Rookwood Benevolent Asylum 

• 1900, 6 August:     Mary Hobbs died in Victoria, aged 76, of ‘senile decay, paralysis’ at Myrtle St, Hawthorne. She had suffered for 13 
weeks. Her death was reported by her son-in-law John Bridges, who must have been the husband of her only surviving child, Jane (41 
years old). She was buried at the Boroondara Cemetery in Kew, Vic. 

 
 
1902:     David Hobbs Died 9:20am on 14/8/1902 at Rookwood Asylum 

 

            Thomas (Son) 20 Farm 
Laborer 

East Langton, 
Leicestershir
e, Eng 

Convalescent 
(September 
1850) 

Both C of E  

             George (Son) 17 Farm 
Laborer 

Leicestershir
e, Eng 

Mother died in 
Quarantine 

Both C of E Died 1916 in Essendon, Vic 
Left a widow, 2 sons and 4 daughters 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/74600942 

                 John 
Meadows (Son) 

15 Farm 
Laborer 

Leicestershir
e, Eng 

Mother died in 
Quarantine 

Both C of E John Meadow Farmer married Margaret Jane Campbell in Walgett in 1873 
John M Farmer died at Walgett, NSW in 1879 
 

                   Frederick 11 Son Leicestershir
e, Eng 

Mother died in 
Quarantine 

Both C of E Died in Victoria in 1881 

                   Charles 10 Son Leicestershir
e, Eng 

Mother died in 
Quarantine 

Both C of E Might possibly have died at Williamstown in 1907, after having lost his sight. Was married and had children. Note this might not be the right 
man! 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/198608624  
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/10633448 

                   Benjamin 7 Son Leicestershir
e, Eng 

Mother died in 
Quarantine 

R C of E Never married 
Died in Victoria in 1870, aged approx. 27 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/5810429 

FOGERTY, John 
(Or Fogarty) 

38 Laborer Tipperary, 
Ireland 

Parents Michael 
& Mary 
FOGERTY, both 
dead 

R RC Possibly died 1878 in QLD [QLD BDM index] 

                 Catherine 38 Wife Tipperary, 
Ireland 

Parents John & 
Ann LEAHY, 
mother living in 
Tipperary 

Both RC  

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/198608624
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/10633448
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/5810429


                  Michael 11 Son Tipperary, 
Ireland 

  Both RC Worked at Glenelg Station near Warwick, then did some carrying work in the western districts before going to work in the locomotive branch of 
the Railway Department at Toowoomba.  
Died 9 Nov 1905, leaving a widow and 7 daughters and 1 son 
Obituary: Michael Fogarty ‘was possessed of a noble character and unswerving rectitude; his word was his bond, and no one could have a truer 
friend or a more cheerful companion in times of adversity’ http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/104904145  

                  Anne 8 Daughter Tipperary, 
Ireland 

  N RC Married Crown Lands Ranger Daniel Donovan in 1859 
Lived at Burpengary 
Died QLD 1899 
Her daughter, Mary Rhodes, wrote article about her family and the Emigrant  in the paper: 
“My mother, the late Mrs Daniel Donavon…brothers Michael and John Fogarty…” 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/20111013  
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3696710  
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/173091793  

                  John 5 Son Tipperary, 
Ireland 

  N RC Schooled in Warwick and Brisbane 
worked as a young man as a shop assistant at Drayton, later as a carrier and then briefly a Toowoomba publican. From the late 1860s until late 
1890s he was a storekeeper in Ruthven St, Toowoomba.  
John married Matilda Revell in 1865 and had five sons and five daughters, seven of whom survived him. 
 
1866 ran Commercial Hotel  

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/212786204  
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/75515357    
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/212782561  (charged with allowing music and dancing in his pub) 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/212782606 (wilfully damaged a window, 1867) 

 
1877 assault http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/75740242 
By 1879 was in Ruthven St http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/217687727 
 
1881: he was elected Alderman for South Ward; went on to hold public office for the rest of his life. 
He was elected Mayor of Toowoomba in 1887 and 1892. 
In 1893, Alderman Fogarty was elected to the Legislative Assembly 
In 1904 he was returned to office 
Died on 9 September 1904. 
See: http://www.parliament.qld.gov.au/members/former/bio?id=253011724 
 
Glowing obituary http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/186673907  
Obit and drawing: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/199302610   
Manner of death: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/186673953  
Funeral: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/186672255  
Summary: http://www.tr.qld.gov.au/our-region/history/past-mayors/11431-toowoomba-city-mayors  
 

 
Photo from State Library of QLD 

FOOTE, Elizabeth 
(Not on embarkation 
list)  

58 Housekee
per 

Thornbury, 
Goucestershi
re, Eng 

Parents John 
and Hester 
Clarke, both 

B Indep Late husband was a missionary who died in Van Diemen’s Land 10 July 1848; 
22 May 1852: died in Brisbane, buried Paddington 24 May, re-interred later at Toowong 
See http://www.fromevalleyvoice.co.uk/footes-of-footes-lane.html for  family background 

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/104904145
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/20111013
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3696710
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/173091793
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/212786204
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/75515357
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/212782561
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/212782606
http://www.parliament.qld.gov.au/members/former/bio?id=253011724
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/186673907
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/199302610
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/186673953
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/186672255
http://www.tr.qld.gov.au/our-region/history/past-mayors/11431-toowoomba-city-mayors
http://www.fromevalleyvoice.co.uk/footes-of-footes-lane.html


dead. Widow of 
Rev Joseph 
FOOTE, died Van 
Diemen’s Land 
1848; 
Had 2 sons in 
Van Diemen’s 
Land; 2 sons and 
3 daughters on 
board; 

               James (Son)  22 Farm 
Laborer 

Frampton, 
Gloucestershi
re, Eng 

2 Brothers 
Launceston 

B Indep 21 Aug – he, with John Shears, John Tolman and JC Foote, carried E.Wade’s body from sea on an iron bedstead to Quarantine ground; 
Special mention by Wickham for helping with stores and as butcher; to be paid 1 shilling and 6p per day (10 Dec) 
He was employed for a while by Cribb and Foote and later became a grocer and an ironmonger.  
21 July 1853 married Catherine Keith nee Cramb in Brisbane; lived in Stanley then Ipswich;  
Member of the Queensland Legislative Assembly for three separate periods between 1873 and 1893. He served as Alderman of Ipswich City 
Council, and was Mayor of Ipswich in 1870.   
His wife died 20 Dec 1893;  
No children 
He died at Ipswich 4 Sep 1895  
Obituary http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/130386208   
Funeral and obit: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/130382665 
Summary: https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/James_Foote  

 
Photo from State Library of QLD 

     Clarissa 
(Daughter) 

24 Dressmak
er  

Frampton, 
Gloucestershi
re, Eng 

2 Brothers 
Launceston 

B Indep Married prominent businessman Benjamin Cribb 30 March 1853 in Brisbane; 
Died 14 Dec 1899 
Death http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/173092455  
Buried in Ipswich 

           Lucy 
(Daughter) 

17 Dressmak
er  

Frampton, 
Gloucestershi
re, Eng 

2 Brothers 
Launceston 

B Indep Married John George Cribb 12 June 1856 in Bris. Died 19 May 1895. 
Obituary: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/183707763  

                Harriet 
(Incorrectly named 
‘Elizabeth’ on 
embarkation list) 

13 Daughter Frampton, 
Gloucestershi
re, Eng 

2 Brothers 
Launceston 

B Indep Married Thomas Bennett 8 Feb 1871 in Brisbane. Died 19 July 1922 in Ipswich. 
Obituary: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/111461977  
Buried in Ipswich 
 ‘The deceased was a fellow passenger of Mrs. P. O'Sullivan, of Woodend, and Mr. Patrick Real (ex-Judge), by the sailing ship America, in the 
voyage from the old land to the new’ 
2 sons, 2 daughters 

*FOOTE, John Clarke 29 Farmer Frampton, 
Gloucestershi
re, Eng 

Mother, 
Elizabeth FOOTE 
on Board 

B Indep 21 Aug – he, with John Shears, John Tolman and James Foote, carried Elizabeth Wade’s body from sea on an iron bedstead to Quarantine 
ground; Special mention by Wickham for helping as principal hospital assistant from first day of Q. Attended sick day and night, giving medicines 
and applying dressings. to be paid 1 shilling and 6p per day (10 Dec); Wickham recommended he should get more. Dr Ballow spoke highly of him. 
John Clarke Foote went to Ipswich in about 1852, worked as a manager in Benjamin Cribb’s general store.  
In 1854, John Clarke Foote went into partnership with brother-in-law Benjamin Cribb, creating the major department store Cribb & Foote,  
6 children 
MLC. Member of QLD Legislative Assembly 1877 until death in Aug 1895. 

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/130386208
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/130382665
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/James_Foote
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/173092455
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/183707763


John Clarke Foote died on 18 August 1895 at his residence on the corner of Thorn and South Streets, Ipswich; 
Buried in Ipswich General Cemetery. He had been suffering from brain disease for the previous 9 months and it had become acute in the 
previous 6 weeks. 
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/John_Clarke_Foote  
http://blog.library.ipswich.qld.gov.au/lh/2013/07/26/ipswichs-forebearers-the-facts/  
obits:  

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/172663487 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/183711174 
 

   
Photo from State Library of QLD 

               Mary Anne 21 Wife Frampton, 
Gloucestershi
re, Eng 

Parents William 
& Elizabeth 
HARDWICK, 
living in 
Gloucester 

B Indep See John Clarke Foote 
Had 6 children 
Died July 1904 in Ipswich of flu, aged 75 
Obituary: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/124419405 

FRITH, William 28 Farm 
Laborer 

Swineshead, 
Lincolnshire, 
Eng 

Parents James 
and Elizabeth 
Frith, father 
living in 
Swineshead; 
Son Henry died 
at Sea 

B C of E  May have died at Currency Creek, SA, in 1861 (unconfirmed) 
http://www.findagrave.com/cgi-bin/fg.cgi?page=gr&amp;GRid=113780088&amp;ref=acom 

            Emma  
(née GILDING or 
GOLDING) 

27 Wife Sutterton, 
Lincolnshire, 
Eng 

Parents Thomas 
and Mary 
Golding, mother 
living in 
Sutterton;  
Son Henry died 
at Sea, 2 May 
1850 

B C of E Got special mention in Wickham’s letter to Colonial Secretary for caring for Mrs Chapple’s children while she was in Quarantine hospital for 7 
weeks; 
May have died 20 April 1894 at Koolunga, SA (unconfirmed) 

              Edmund 5 Son Swineshead, 
Lincolnshire, 
Eng 

Brother Henry 
died at Sea, 2 
May 1850 

N C of E Married Elizabeth Fidock at Currency Creek, SA on 12 Nov 1867 http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/39185849 
Farmer at Crystal Brook, SA:  
Kapunda Herald (South Australia: Friday 2 February 1906) Page 7 ‘a claim in connection with a complete harvester sent by Messrs Hawke and 
Co., Kapunda, to Mr. Edmund Frith, a farmer, of Crystal Brook, the claim being £81, the price of the machine’ 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/108375246  
 
Had 10 or more children 
 

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/John_Clarke_Foote
http://blog.library.ipswich.qld.gov.au/lh/2013/07/26/ipswichs-forebearers-the-facts/
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/183711174
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/39185849
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/108375246


Death 1918: The Advertiser (Adelaide, South Australia: Tuesday 8 January 1918) Page 4. “FRITH.-On the 6th January, at his late residence. 
Austral-terrace, Malvern, Edmund Frith, late of Haywood, Crystal Brook 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/5586297 

              Henry (not on 
list) -  note that Capt 
Kemp called him 
William  

Baby, 8 
months 

Son Swineshead, 
Lincolnshire, 
Eng 

Died at sea 2 
May of 
diarrhoea 

N C of E Death reported in the Moreton Bay Courier on 7 Sept 1850: 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3716014  

FRITH, Robert 30 Laborer Swineshead, 
Lincolnshire, 
Eng 

Died in 
Quarantine.  

B C of E It was reported that on 3 September, two men died; that on 5 September, Maria Trowbridge and two other adults died; and the next day, 
another. The surgeon’s notes report numbers but not names for these days. By process of elimination it has been deduced that of the unnamed 
deaths on 3 September (two males), 5 September (two) and 6 September (one), the victims were Charles Hallett, Robert Frith, John Hector, 
James Syrett or James Real 

     Frances 
(née WILLIAMS)      

27 Wife Gosberton, 
Lincolnshire, 
Eng 

Husband died in 
Quarantine 

B C of E Parents Fitzwilliam Williams and Susannah Lister, father living in Gosberton (source: family historian, supplied to North Stradbroke Island 
Museum) 
 
11 Dec 1850, married Josiah Trowbridge – also a passenger on Emigrant – at St John’s Church, Brisbane; 
1851 had a child at Ipswich 
1858 had a child at Clarence Town, NSW 
1862-1867 had children at Newcastle, NSW 
1898 husband died at Leichhardt, NSW 
Death March 31, 1911 at Ashfield, NSW: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/28140684 

              Annie Alice 4 Daughter 
of Robert 
& Frances 

Gosberton, 
Lincolnshire, 
Eng 

Father died in 
Quarantine 

N C of E Born 9 June, 1846 
Married Robert Croll, Master Mariner, on 1 October, 1867, at Newcastle, NSW  
On 17 June, they were at sea on the ‘Heversham’ when it was wrecked on Thom’s Rock, Cook Straight, with Capt Croll in command.  
24 March 1881, their 18-month-old daughter died at sea 
27 March, 1881, Capt Croll died at sea. Annie left the ship in China, where she met William Francis Stevenson of the Chinese Imperial Maritime 
Customs Service. 
Annie married William Francis Stevenson 02 November 1882 at British Consulate, Tientsin, China;  
They lived in Tientsin for several years and had children there; (source: family historian, supplied to North Stradbroke Island Museum) 
 
Annie’s husband died in 1904; she died in Ashfield, NSW in 1911 
 
Marriage to Stevenson: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/141017925  
Death http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/28139782  
 

               Susannah 1 Daughter Gosberton, 
Lincolnshire, 
Eng 

Father died in 
Quarantine 

N C of E Marriage 1868 in Burwood, New South Wales, Australia, to David Charles Thomas (1841–) ;  
Had 9 children;  
died at Ashfield 25 Oct 1934 [Possibly the last living passenger of the Emigrant?] 
Death notice: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/17131310    

FURPHY, John 
(Not on embarkation 
list)  

23 Farm 
Laborer 

Armagh, 
Ireland 

Brother and 
sister at Port 
Philip; 
Mother 
(Euphemia) died 
at anchor, 
Moreton Bay 8 
Aug 1850; 

B C of E Went to Vic, had 8 children; died 02 Oct 1913 • Euroa, Victoria, Australia 
http://person.ancestry.com.au/tree/74960325/person/40306596846/facts  
His nephew John was Founder of Furphy and Sons Foundry (invented the famous World War I water cart where many a tale was told and from 
which the word "furphy", meaning rumour, originated) 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/71579361 
His nephew Joseph wrote the Australian classic novel, "Such is Life". 
Obituary  http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/65590028  
 ‘We regret to record the death of Mr. John Furphy, of Euroa, at the advanced age of 82 years. Deceased came here some years ago, and settled 
down to "husband out life's taper to its close." He was of a strong constitution, and bore his age manfully until the last twelve months, when his 
energies visibly failed; and death took place as a natural course of a long and vigorous life. Miss Furphy was untiring in her care and attention to 
her father, and all that loving hands and heart could suggest eased his path to the grave. Mrs. Carlyon, of Euroa, was a daughter, and Mr. Furphy, 
of Shepparton, a brother. Deceased had lived an active life, in honorable pursuits, and had done yeoman service in connection with the 
Methodist church and Sunday schools, in various centres of the state. The funeral will leave his late residence at 2 p.m. today.’ 

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/5586297
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3716014
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/28140684
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/141017925
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/28139782
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/17131310
http://person.ancestry.com.au/tree/74960325/person/40306596846/facts
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/71579361
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/65590028


         Matilda 
(née MAGEE or 
McGee) 
(Not on embarkation 
list)  

22 Wife Armagh, 
Ireland 

Parents Edward 
and Letitia 
McGee, both 
living in Armagh; 
Brother in Pt 
Phillip 

B C of E Died: 02 May 1907 in Euroa, Victoria, Australia 
Death: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/65617156  

FURPHY, Mrs 
Euphemia Euphrates 
nee Forsythe 

67     died at anchor, 
Moreton Bay 8 
Aug 1850 (of 
fever) 

  C of E  

GLEESON, Thomas 30 Farm 
Labourer 

Newmarket,  
County Clare, 
Ireland  

Parents Michael 
and Mary 
Gleeson, living 
in Co. Clare; 
Wife died at 
Sea, 22 Jul 1850 

B RC Was witness at enquiry into Elizabeth Wade’s death  

Married Emigrant passenger Catherine O’Brien in QLD 30 Nov 1850; 

May have died in NSW, 1893 http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/13934930  

 

GLEESON, Ann 
(not on list) 

29 Wife of 
Thomas 

Newmarket,  
County Clare, 
Ireland 

Died 22 Jul 1850 
of fever 

  RC?  

                    Mary 7 Daughter Newmarket,  
County Clare, 
Ireland 

Mother died at 
Sea 

N RC Was on list of sick of 23 August; Landed at Quarantine ground 14 Aug with low grade fever 

                    Catherine 4 Daughter Newmarket,  
County Clare, 
Ireland 

Mother died at 
Sea 

N RC  

GORMAN, Daniel 39 Laborer Tipperary, 
Ireland 

Died on ship at 
anchor, 
Quarantine 
station, 13 Aug 
1850 

B RC Last to die on board. 
Probably buried in Dunwich cemetery  

(née RYAN) Mary 35 Wife Tipperary, 
Ireland 

Parents Dennis 
and Honor Ryan, 
both dead; 
Husband died in 
Quarantine 

R RC Married David Shehan (or Sheehan) 5 April 1852 
According to Jenny Harkness in Queensland Founding Families (2009) p.573: 

• Settled in One Mile Swamp 

• Died 17 Oct 1888 and is buried in South Brisbane cemetery (Dutton Park) next to her daughter Mary Tolman 

                    Patrick 13 Son Tipperary, 
Ireland 

Father died in 
Quarantine 

B RC Was in quarantine hospital on 23 Aug (Col Sec letters); 
9 Aug 1858 married Mary Ann Dawson in Brisbane  
Wife Mary Ann died in childbirth at age 17 in 1860; midwife was charged with negligence http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3717316   
Married Ann O’Connor, Scottish immigrant, in Brisbane 
Had several children (9, according to Jenny Harkness); died 14 March 1917 in Brisbane, buried Dutton Park 
Became a grocer 

                    Mary 12 Daughter Tipperary, 
Ireland 

Father died in 
Quarantine 

R RC 5 September 1853, she had married Emigrant passenger John Tolman;  
1856-1871 had children: 

• 1854 – 1941:  Sarah 

• 1856 – 1899:  Mary Ann 

• 1859 - ?  Daniel James 

• 1861 – 1913:  Harriet 

• 1864 – 1902: John 

• 1866 – 1935:  Thomas Day 

• 1868 – 1919:  Robert 

• 1870 – 1871:  William Joseph 

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/65617156
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/13934930
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3717316


 
In 1867: her husband was an insolvent shipwright 
Mary died 13 Oct 1871 at One Mile Swamp, South Brisbane, Queensland, aged 33, from uterine cancer 
Buried South Brisbane location 2B-9 
Her brother, Thomas Gorman, later erected a large monument on her grave, according to Jenny Harkness in Queensland Founding Families 
(2009) p.657. 

                    Denis 9 Son Tipperary, 
Ireland 

Father died in 
Quarantine 

N RC 21 Apr 1865 married Elenor (or Ellen) O’Connor at St Stephens Church Brisbane Qld  
Had 13 children 
Death: 25 July 1916 at Brisbane, Queensland, Australia [all unconfirmed; from family tree on Ancestry.com] 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/177976166  
According to Jenny Harkness he became a cab proprietor 
Buried at South Brisbane 26 July 1916, no age recorded, location 2B-28 

                    Thomas 7 Son Tipperary, 
Ireland 

Father died in 
Quarantine 

N RC According to Jenny Harkness in Queensland Founding Families (2009) p.573 

• Married Annie Reid, an Irish immigrant at St Stephen’s Catholic Church, Brisbane in 1870 

• Was a labourer at time of marriage 

• Became a farmer at Kerry, near Beaudesert 

• Had 8 children 
Death: 8 Jul 1921 in Queensland (QLD bdm) 

HALLETT, Charles 
(not on embarkation 
list) 

41 Laborer Co. 
Somerset, 
Eng 

Died in 
Quarantine, Sep 
1850 

B C of E Landed Quarantine station 14 Aug in inflammatory stage of fever;  
It was reported that on 3 September, two men died; that on 5 September, Maria Trowbridge and two other adults died; and the next day, 
another. The surgeon’s notes report numbers but not names for these days. By process of elimination it has been deduced that of the unnamed 
deaths on 3 September (two males), 5 September (two) and 6 September (one), the victims were Charles Hallett, Robert Frith, John Hector, 
James Syrett or James Real; 
born 19 June 1808 at W. Chinnock, Somerset 
1841 census: Middle Chinnock 

HALLETT, Hannah 
(not on embarkation 
list) 

43 (Ancestry) Wife of 
Charles 

Co. 
Somerset, 
Eng 

Died at sea 24 
May - apoplexy 

  C of E Died shortly after giving birth. 
nee Hannah Hockey, born 21 June 1806 at W. Chinnock, Somerset, married Charles 8 Oct 1832 (unconfirmed, from Ancestry.com) 
 

                  James 
(not on embarkation 
list; listed with single 
men on arrival list) 

15 Laborer Co. 
Somerset, 
Eng 

Died in 
Quarantine, 3 
Sep 1850 

R C of E  

                   Charles 
(not on embarkation 
list) 

13 Son Co. 
Somerset, 
Eng 

Orphan. Mother 
died at Sea, 24 
May 1850 

R C of E Admitted to Protestant orphanage, Sydney, 19 Dec 1850 
Apprenticed to Dr P. Hill (or O.P Hill?) – This may have been Dr Patrick Hill of Camden: http://www.medicalpioneers.com/cgi-
bin/index.cgi?detail=1&amp;id=1411 
Married -  Martha Bott in Goulburn in 1862  
Had at least 10 children  
1883 - donations to hospital http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/110071643  
1884 Slaughtering license: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/103509001  
1884: his wife died at Lake Bathurst: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/98434595  
1888 - breach of public instruction act (not sending kids to school) - dismissed http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/100234380  
1888 - fined for entering enclosed lands http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/98452450  
Died of heart attack in bushfire at Marsfield (Sydney) in 1909 - was living at home of his son-in-law Abraham John Norman: 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/86000746 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/15094398  
 

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/177976166
http://www.medicalpioneers.com/cgi-bin/index.cgi?detail=1&amp;id=1411
http://www.medicalpioneers.com/cgi-bin/index.cgi?detail=1&amp;id=1411
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/110071643
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/103509001%201884
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/103509001%201884
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/98434595
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/100234380
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/98452450
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/86000746
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/15094398


                    Henry 
(not on embarkation 
list) 

11 Son Co. 
Somerset, 
Eng 

Died in 
Quarantine, 26 
Sep 1850 

R C of E  

                    Anne 
(not on embarkation 
list) 

7 Daughter Co. 
Somerset, 
Eng 

Orphan. Mother 
died at Sea, 24 
May 1850 

N C of E Admitted to Protestant orphanage, Sydney, 19 Dec 1850 
She left the home on 6 April 1854, when she was apprenticed to Jasper Tunn of Bungonia (near Goulburn) for six years. Anne was only about 11 
years old when she was sent out to work.  
Jasper Tunn was an ex-convict and former coppersmith from London; he received his pardon in 1820; in 1830, he was found guilty of a violent 
assault upon his wife, for which he was bound to keep the peace for a surety of £50 and two others of £25 each. Earlier that year he had been 
granted a publican’s licence, and over the ensuing years he bought up land in the Bungonia district. Tunn’s first wife died in 1832 and he 
remarried the same year, to Sophia. Jasper and Sophia Tunn referred to Ann as their ‘adopted daughter’ and re-named the 11-year-old girl Lucy.  
In 1860, Sophia died when her clothing caught on fire.  
 
Ann absconded in March 1860, only weeks before the end of her six-year apprenticeship. 
Tunn wrote to the paper: Jasper Tunn expressed his outrage in the local paper. ‘Whereas my adopted daughter, Lucy Tunn, otherwise Ann 

Hallett, having left my service before the expiration of her apprenticeship,’ he wrote, ‘this is to caution all persons against in any way employing 

or harbouring her after this notice, as I will prosecute anyone so offending.’ http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/111785429  

Ann married John Fox 1861 at Goulburn; had 9 children; 

John Fox died in 1902 (Albury Banner and Wodonga Express, 10 October 1902, page 15 http://trove.nla.gov.au/ndp/del/article/100607147) 

Ann died 1918 at Junee: http://trove.nla.gov.au/ndp/del/article/141945146  

  

                    George 
(not on embarkation 
list) 

4 Son Co. 
Somerset, 
Eng 

Orphan. Mother 
died at Sea, 24 
May 1850 

N C of E Died in orphanage 21 April 1851 (ie about 4 months after admission) 

Baby 1 month Son Born at Sea Died at sea 18 
June - diarrhoea 

N C of E  

HARRINGTON, Isaac 33 Farm 
Laborer 

Halstead, 
Essex, 
Eng 

Parents 
Benjamin & 
Rachel 
HARRINGTON, 
father living in 
Halstead 

B C of E c 1856 son Isaac born in Moreton Bay 
July 1862: was in the employment of a Mr Read in Brisbane - http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3165048   
Noted on the jury list in a criminal case in Brisbane as a carpenter of Boundary St (1876): 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/1394154    
26 Feb, 1896, died at his home in South Brisbane 
Buried Toowong location 14/10/12 with Maria 
 

                         Maria 29 Wife Acton, 
Suffolk, Eng 

Parents Charles 
& Mary 
STEARNE (or 
Steine), father 
living in Acton 

B C of E c 1856 son Isaac born in Moreton Bay 
14 Jan 1882: died at her home in Brisbane 
Was living at Jane St, West End at time of death: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/170216299  
Buried Toowong location 14/10/12 with Isaac 

                        Rachael 3 Daughter Halstead, 
Essex, 
Eng 

  N C of E 21 April 1868: married John Sands in Brisbane; 
1869-1886: had children;  
1 Nov 1912: Died in Brisbane, buried in Toowong, location 13-53-15 

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/111785429
http://trove.nla.gov.au/ndp/del/article/100607147
http://trove.nla.gov.au/ndp/del/article/141945146
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3165048
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/1394154
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/170216299


 
In ‘Living pioneer colonists’, Queenslander 7 Aug 1909 http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/21829670  no. 192 
 

HASTINGS, Thomas 33 Farm 
Laborer 

Limerick, 
Ireland 

Parents Patrick 
& Ellen 
HASTINGS, both 
dead 

B RC Was witness at enquiry into Elizabeth Wade’s death 
Worked in Darling Downs, Myall Creek and Gayndah. Died shortly after settling in Gayndah (see wife’s obituary below)  
Death registered in 1856 in QLD 
From Kath Hastings in Queensland Founding Families (2009), pp.312-314: 

• From Shanagolden, County Limerick 

• Married in April 1850 in Mitchelstown, County Cork, 3 days before boarding the ship Emigrant 

• He gave profession on marriage cert as ‘late of the Irish Revenue Police’ and she as ‘domestic servant’ 

• Joined colonial police force in 1852, worked at Gayndah 

• Children: Mary Jane b.1851; twins Thomas and Anne in 1852; twins Elizabeth and Dorah by 1854 

• 21 Aug 1854, bought a house on Baronne St on banks of Burnett River 

• Died from falling off a horse while on duty on 20 Dec 1856 

       Faithy / Faity 
 
Faithful 
(née EBZERY) 

27 Wife Limerick, 
Ireland 

Parents Philip 
and Faity 
Essberry, 
mother living in 
Co. Limerick; 
Brother Mr 
Essberry & 
Cousin in Pt 
Phillip 

B RC Faithful Hastings nee Essberry, widow of Thomas Hastings, married Andrew Farrelly, QLD country in 1862(poundkeeper).  
She died in 1915 in her 90th year in Maryborough. Had 9 children. 
Obituary: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/150953596 
 
From Kath Hastings in Queensland Founding Families (2009), pp.312-314: 

• She had another child, Edward, in 1859. Her first husband had died by then and the father of Edward is unknown. 

• After marrying Andrew Farrelly, she had 3 more children: Francis Andrew, Rose, and Bridget Delia 

• They moved to Maryborough 

• Andrew died in 1898 
 

HOWE, Joseph 23 Farmer Shepwick, 
Somersetshir
e, England 

Parents Samuel 
& Maria HOWE, 
both living in 
‘Shaburg’ 
(Seaborough?) 
Somerset  

B C of E A colourful biography: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/21251795 
On arrival, worked at Beaudesert for Captain Robertson and William Duckett White. 
Later bought a house in Kangaroo Point but sold it as his wife didn’t like it. 
He then purchased the property in Vulture-street, run ning through to Mark-lane, and here he carried on a slaughtering, butchering, dairying, 
and carrying business for years. 
‘He also carried the first Kanakas who landed in Queensland from where Messrs. Baynes Bros.' works now are to 
"Bobby" Towns's cotton plantation on the Logan. The opposition of the whites to "coloured labour" was as strong then as is the objection of the 
Labour party now, and Howe had to "do the round" out of sight, with the dray covered with tarpaulins.’ 
His wife died in 1883 and he remarried, to ‘Mrs Howes’ 
18 Sep 1913 died in Brisbane  
Buried South Brisbane cemetery location 11B-93 
 

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/21829670
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/150953596
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/21251795


 
Photo from The Queenslander, 22 Dec 1900, p.1267 http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/21251795  

                Anne 47 (error?) Wife Meare, 
Somerset, 
England 

Parents John & 
Elizabeth 
KEANE, 
Both dead 

B C of E See Joseph Howe above. 
24 Jan 1883: died in Brisbane 
Her funeral notice: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3414308 
Buried South Brisbane cemetery location 11B-93 

                Julia 1 Daughter Meare, 
Somerset, 
England 

  N C of E Became ‘Mrs. Moody, of Paradise, on the Beaudesert-road’ 
1871: Julia Ann Kean How married William Moody; 
Had at least 6 children 
Died 30 Nov 1920. Buried South Brisbane cemetery location 6-197 

LIPSCOMBE, Henry 22 Brickmake
r 

Surrey, Eng Parents William 
& Elizabeth 
LIPSCOMBE; 
father living in 
Surrey 

B C of E 22 Aug was witness at enquiry into Elizabeth Wade’s death; 10 Dec – mentioned by Wickham in letter to col sec – worked very satisfactorily as 
one of emigrants in charge of stores – to be paid 1 shilling 6p per day; 
 
Son George Stradbrook Lipscombe’s was born at Dunwich on 14 November, 1850; 
More of his extended family immigrated to Australia in 1856 (brother George settled in Wagga Wagga); 
 
Henry went to the Turon for gold; when it failed he settled in Sydney; took up a lease at the Waterloo Estate (now Redfern), and began to 
manufacture bricks. Got contract work supplying bricks for the railways and other public works; travelled widely. 
 
Had 6 more children 
 
In 1886 he was elected an Alderman for Burwood, and in 1888 he served as Mayor – a position he held for a year.  
 
Death of Henry 1891 of apoplexy and exhaustion during the influenza epidemic http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/219923428   
(his wife died a few weeks later) 
 
Henry senior’s funeral: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/13839623   
Excellent summary: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/71101248   
 
Henry’s second son, Henry George Lipscombe became Mayor of Enfield in 1895. 
Brother George’s brickworks at Wagga http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/101816025  
Obituary of his brother George: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/101873326  
Family historian’s page on the family: http://www.genealogy.com/forum/surnames/topics/lipscomb/17/  
Drawing of Henry Lipscombe in the Australian Town and Country Journal, 18 Aug 1888, p.29 (below) 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/71101248  
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                     Elizabeth 23 Wife Surrey, Eng Parents John & 
Mary NEVILLE, 
mother living in 
Surrey 

B C of E 14 November 1850 – gave birth to son, George Henry Stradbrook (sic) born at Dunwich 
See notes for husband above.  
Elizabeth died 1891, a few weeks after her husband: 
 http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/13849959    
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/28267428   
 

LYNCH, Michael 39 Laborer Co. Limerick, 
Ireland 

Parents Michael 
& Ellen LYNCH, 
both dead 

B RC His first job in QLD was at R.J. Smith’s boiling down establishment at Town Marie (now Tivoli)  
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/120562630  
Must have died c1853 according to wife’s obituary 

                 Margaret 38 Wife Co. Limerick, 
Ireland 

Parents Edward 
& Catherine 
BURNS, both 
dead 

B RC Bought land in Brisbane 1855; 
Settled at Helidon, died at Helidon 22 Feb 1878, aged 79, and is buried at Ipswich. 
Obituary: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/215611103  

                 Daniel (Son) 20 Laborer Co. Limerick, 
Ireland 

  B RC 28 Nov 1855 married at Ipswich to Ellen Burns 
1856-1870: had several children at Ipswich and elsewhere in QLD 
Tried for assault but case dismissed (1866 at Helidon) http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/123332801  
Moved to Dalby 1868 (article 30 Sept 1868 p.1) applied for Publican’s licence; claimed had not had a licence before; had wife and 5 children: 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/75521610 
Died 14 July 1910 

      Catherine 
(Daughter) 

18 Domestic Co. Limerick, 
Ireland 

  B RC Married Daniel Alone 26 July 1856. 
Lived in Ipswich, had children 1857-1863. 
1856: Daniel dismissed from police force for gross violation of duty: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/78849240  
 
Case of desertion and non-maintenance of their child, Catherine against Daniel, 1858: (he was a bullock-driver by then) 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/77427564 
  
Case of non-payment 1859  http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3720780 
Brought case of assault against her husband in 1860; case dismissed: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/77434075  
1862: Daniel drunk and disorderly – fined http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/125597376  
1862 Daniel fined for obscene language http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/79976981  
1863 Daniel in court for assaulting and refusing to pay a bullocky http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/123604251  
1886 applied for publican’s licence in Helidon http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/122555771  
Daniel fined for damaging footway: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/123149180  
16 Dec 1906: Catherine died, buried in Ipswich 
 

                  Johanna 16 Domestic Co. Limerick,   B RC Hannah Lynch of Helidon married Owen Burns 24 June 1867 at Helidon. Burns was a publican. 

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/13849959
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/28267428
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/120562630
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/215611103
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/123332801
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/75521610
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/78849240
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/77427564
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3720780
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/77434075
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/125597376
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/79976981
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/123604251
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Ireland Husband died of an accident in 1873, possibly while drunk 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/169485627   
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/77086829 

Hannah died 29 Sept 1882, hotel keeper  
Hannah’s death: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/123274148 

                  Edmund 
[Edward according to 
bdm – marriage and 
death] 

13 Son Co. Limerick, 
Ireland 

  B RC 18 Jan 1863 married at Ipswich to Margaret O’Malley 
1863-1880: had children in QLD 
21 Nov 1900 Died in hospital in Brisbane: 

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/19059683 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/172985578 

 

                  Bridget 11 Daughter Co. Limerick, 
Ireland 

  R RC 10 Nov 1863: married Thomas Flanagan (or “Flannigan”) at Ipswich. 
1864-1882: had children in QLD 
17 April 1919: Died.  
Obituary: ‘of homely disposition and highly respected’ survived by 7 daughters and 2 sons, died at Ipswich: 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/120562630  

                  Thomas 9 Son Co. Limerick, 
Ireland 

  R RC 1868 married Ellen Moloney 
Had children 1869-1879 in QLD 
Became a publican in Ipswich http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/123334897 
1880 died 
 

                   Patrick 7 Son Co. Limerick, 
Ireland 

  N RC 1868 – carrier in Ipswich  
1874 stabbed in the groin http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/130759898 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/130760500  
1884 insolvent publican http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/121932056  
8 Feb 1905 death at age 58 http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/124519423  
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/124519443 
9 Feb 1905: buried at Ipswich 

MALONY, Michael  25 Farm 
Laborer 

County Clare, 
Ireland 

Parents John 
and Bridget 
Malony, both 
dead; 
Brother in 
Sydney 

B RC Was on the sick list of 23 August (Col Sec letters) 
Witnessed the marriage of James Welch and Ann Campbell (passengers of the Emigrant) 2 Dec 1850. 
May have died in QLD 1902: In QLD BDM: Died 1902 Michael Moloney (parents unknown) born Ireland aged 80 years (to be confirmed) 

                     Mary  23 Wife County Clare, 
Ireland 

Parents Thomas 
& Ann McMANN 

B RC Witnessed the marriage of James Welch and Ann Campbell (passengers of the Emigrant) 2 Dec 1850. 

MALONY, John 
(Not on embarkation 
list) 

36 Farm 
Laborer 

Co. 
Tipperary, 
Ireland  

Parents Daniel 
and Norah 
Molony, mother 
living in 
Tipperary; 
Brother in Pt 
Phillip 

B RC  

                     Mary 
(Not on embarkation 
list) 

38 Wife Co. 
Tipperary, 
Ireland 

Parents William 
& 
Mary MURPHY, 
both dead 

R RC  

                     Daniel 
(Not on embarkation 
list) 

13 Son Co. 
Tipperary, 
Ireland 

   B RC 14 Aug 1850 was landed at Quarantine station recovering from fever  
On the list of sick 23 Aug (letters 722 etc);  

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/169485627
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/77086829
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/123274148
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                     Michael 
(Not on embarkation 
list) 

11 Son Co. 
Tipperary, 
Ireland 

  B RC 14 Aug 1850 was landed at Quarantine station recovering from fever (though this might have been the other Michael Maloney) 
On the list of sick 23 Aug (letters 722 etc); 

                     Richard 
(Not on embarkation 
list) 

8 Son Co. 
Tipperary, 
Ireland 

  R RC  

                      John 
(Not on embarkation 
list) 

5 Son Co. 
Tipperary, 
Ireland 

  N RC  

McDONOUGH, 
Martin 
(Not on embarkation 
list) 

30 Farm 
Laborer 

Co. Galway, 
Ireland 

Parents John 
and Mary 
McDonough, 
both dead; 
Sister & Uncle in 
Parramatta 

B RC  

             Bridget 
              (née MULLIN) 
(Not on embarkation 
list) 

26 Wife; 
Dressmak
er 

Co. Galway, 
Ireland 

Parents Timothy 
and Mary 
Mullin, both 
living in Galway  

B RC  

                        Mary 
(Not on embarkation 
list) 

4 Daughter Co. Galway, 
Ireland 

  N RC  

                        John 
(Not on embarkation 
list) 

2 Son Co. Galway, 
Ireland 

  N RC Marriage 29 Jan 1876 in Church of St Charles, Waverley, New South Wales, to Margaret Coniry (1851–1904); 3 children. (Unconfirmed – from 
Ancestry.com) 

MEARA, Timothy 38 Farm 
Laborer 

Co. 
Tipperary, 
Ireland 

Parents James 
and Margaret 
Meara, mother 
living in 
Tipperary; 
Wife died at 
Sea, 25 May 
1850 

B RC Son James’s obituary: ‘The father settled in Brisbane, and the sons took employment on Talgai station, where they remained for many years, 
filling positions of trust, in which they earned the esteem and confidence of all connected with the station’ 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/172896457  
 

MEARA, Mary  32 Wife of 
Timothy 

Co. 
Tipperary, 
Ireland 

Died at sea 25 
May 

    Was one of the first to fall ill with typhus 

               James 13 Son Co. 
Tipperary, 
Ireland 

Mother died at 
Sea, 25 May 
1850 

N RC Died in Millbrook, Clifton, QLD in 1903 
Obituary: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/172896457  
Never married  
Buried at Clifton. 
Note that according to QLD bdm, James Meara, son of Timothy Meara and Winnifred Kennedy, died in QLD 1903; Winifred may have been a 
stepmother 

                John 10 Son Co. 
Tipperary, 
Ireland 

Mother died at 
Sea, 25 May 
1850 

N RC Married and had 10 children; lived in Millbrook. 
Died in hospital in Brisbane, late August 1900  
Respected; ‘quiet unassuming ways’ http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/185594650   
Buried at Clifton 

                Mary 
(Born at sea) 

infant Daughter Co. 
Tipperary, 
Ireland 

Mother died at 
Sea, 25 May 
1850 

N RC Not on the embarkation list - might have been born at sea 

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/172896457
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/172896457
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/185594650


O'BRIEN, Charles 25 Farm 
Laborer 

County Clare, 
Ireland  

Parents Charles 
and Hannah 
O’Brien, both 
dead, 
Hospital 
(September 
1850) 

B RC Caretaker at Supreme Court 
Died 26 March 1900. 
Obituaries: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/82156627    
Lived in Warwick then Canning Downs, got rich with property in Fortitude Valley, built good hotel (City Hotel, Brunswick St), fell in financial crisis 
of 1865-1866; never recovered his fortunes, got job as caretaker of Court; 
Caretaker for 9 years; died of a gastric complaint; was a popular caterer for the QLD turf club races; stayed friends with Justice Real and Mr 
Slattery from the Emigrant; had wife and children alive at his death: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/173777509   
Buried Toowong location 7-48-17 
Charles O’Brien ran several pubs in Brisbane and became insolvent several times. His history is outlined in the episode of ‘Who do you think you 
are’ that features the ancestors of journalist Kerry O’Brien. More information can be found here: 
http://www.archives.qld.gov.au/Researchers/History/Pages/story-charles-obrien.aspx  

                  Anne 27 Wife County Clare, 
Ireland 

Parents John & 
Ann WILSON 

N RC 14 Aug 1850 landed in Quarantine ground with low fever; 
Lived in Fortitude Valley 
Had another child: Kate, born c 1861, who married Michael McLaughlin/McLoughlin in Brisbane in 1880; 
12 July 1904: died in Brisbane aged 67; buried 13 July. Obituary: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/19290353 
 
 

                  Mary 6 Daughter County Clare, 
Ireland 

  N RC Was on the sick list of 23 August. 
Married William Apjohn (subinspector of police).in Brisbane, 30 Aug 1864.  
Had at least 9 children1865-1882; 
Died 1908. Funeral notice: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/19508716 

                  John infant Son County Clare, 
Ireland 

  N RC John Joseph married Sarah Hennessey on 14 June 1873; 
1874-1891: issue born in Brisbane (at least 8) 
7 Jan 1919: died in Brisbane 
Obituary: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/120558231 ; 
Worked on construction of main line between Brisbane and Tba; settled on a farm near Gatton; lived there for >50 years; ‘His familiar cheery 
voice will be greatly missed, not alone by his family and friends, but by the people of the district, to practically all of whom he was well known.’ ; 
had lots of children and step-kids. 
Funeral notice: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/120563847  

PERKINS, Thomas 37 Shepherd Chepstowe, 
Northampton
, Eng 

Parents William 
& Elizabeth 
PERKINS, living 
at Chepstowe;  

B Bapt Was a witness at enquiry into death of Elizabeth Wade 22 August. 
11 children survived him (5 sons, 6 daughters). Also had 3 babies who died in infancy. 
Lived in Toowoomba, Crow’s Nest, Goombungee, Emu Creek.  
1875: remarried, to Annie (Hannah) Maria Brown. 
Died 1912; 
In the late fifties, be was managing Cecil Plains for "Big-head" Jimmy Taylor, and then he bought a block of land on Spring Creek, Drayton, where 
he did a little bit for his own banking account. 'Tis 20 years since be shifted to the Crow's Nest district, and residents of those parts speak just as 
favorably of him as the people be came in. contact with years before. 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/201743784  
 
Bought land now known as Redlands (sold to Edmund Wilcox) ; first butcher in Toowoomba; then Spring Creek; then Goombungee; then Emu 
Creek where he stayed until his death; 11 children survived him; 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/183187278  ;  
‘one of the first adventurous spirits who proved that the growth of cereals was possible on the Darling Downs.’ 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/183191410   
 

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/82156627
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/173777509
http://www.archives.qld.gov.au/Researchers/History/Pages/story-charles-obrien.aspx
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/19290353
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/19508716
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/120558231
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/120563847
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/201743784
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/183187278
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/183191410


 
Photo courtesy of Jenny Brown. 
 

(née 
JONES) Charlotte 

27 Wife Littlethorpe, 
Leicestershir
e, Eng 

Parents Robert 
and Ann Jones 
nee Hutcheson; 
Convalescent 
(September 
1850) 

B Bapt See notes on husband above. 
1857-1866: had children, QLD country 
27 July 1874: died  
Death notice http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/75469772 
 

                 Charlotte infant Daughter Chepstowe, 
Northampton
, Eng 

  N Bapt Married Adolphus Henry Trevethan in 1873; 
Had 4 children 
Died 7 July , 1902 in South Brisbane after short illness: 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/175324842 http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/175327651 

REAL, James 38 Laborer Pallasgreen, 
Limerick, 
Ireland 
 
(written as 
Palisgrain) 

Died in 
Quarantine 

B RC It was reported that on 3 September, two men died; that on 5 September, Maria Trowbridge and two other adults died; and the next day, 
another. The surgeon’s notes report numbers but not names for these days. By process of elimination it has been deduced that of the unnamed 
deaths on 3 September (two males), 5 September (two) and 6 September (one), the victims were Charles Hallett, Robert Frith, John Hector, 
James Syrett or James Real 

(née DONEGAN) Ellen 37 Wife Co. Limerick, 
Ireland 

Parents James 
and Kate 
Donegan, 
mother living in 
Co. Limerick; 
Cousin in Pt 
Phillip 

B RC Settled in Ipswich with 6 children; died 1 or 2 Nov 1878; buried Ipswich 
Death notice: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/122936337  

             James (Son) 18 Farm 
Laborer 

Co. Limerick, 
Ireland 

Father died in 
Quarantine 

B RC 24 May 1862: was labourer at Ipswich, married Catherine Keogh, had 7 children in Ipswich, became hotel keeper, had land at Goodna; 
died 21 Mar 1879; 
Death: of chest and bronchial afflictions, heart disease; hotelkeeper; news of death ‘generally received with great regret’ 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/169504613 

        Mary (Daughter) 16 Domestic Co. Limerick, 
Ireland 

Father died in 
Quarantine 

B RC 7 May 1851: Mary married Patrick O’Sullivan at Ipswich. O’Sullivan was an ex-convict, arrived 1838, TOL 1847, pardoned 1849; selected land in 
Ipswich; went into politics 1860; see ADB: http://adb.anu.edu.au/biography/osullivan-patrick-4349 
O’Sullivan died 1904; Mary died 27 Sept 1925 in Ipswich. 
Obituary: Mary’s son was a lawyer Mr. Justice Thomas O'Sullivan. 3 grandchildren were lawyers. Very successful family. Charitable and modest.  
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/182271428 

         Kate (Daughter) 
 
(Catherine according 
to QLD bdm death 
index) 

14 Domestic Co. Limerick, 
Ireland 

Father died in 
Quarantine 

B RC Married Pierce Gould Copley 1854? 1855? at Ipswich ; died 16 Jan 1893 at Bungeworgorai near Roma 
Pierce Gould Copley imprisoned for assault and robbery in 1860 http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3719407(NB/ there were several 
Pierce Gould Copleys! This may not have been Kate’s husband) 
NB they also had a son called Pierce Gould Copley who died in 1903.  
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/97452732  

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/75469772
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/175324842
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/175327651
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/122936337
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/169504613
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/182271428
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3719407
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/97452732


Kate’s death http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/97514950 

              Michael 12 Son Co. Limerick, 
Ireland 

Father died in 
Quarantine 

R RC Michael was a publican, grocer and storekeeper & a highly respected alderman for 13 years. Mayor of Ipswich in 1901.  

1860 had freehold in Gordon St, Ipswich; 1865 was publican at Ipswich;  

28 Feb 1865 married Catherine Mackay; had 10 children 

1879 was grocer and storekeeper at Ipswich,  

1900 was alderman;  

1901 was mayor;  

Died of heart disease in Ipswich 25 June 1908; he was survived by nine children; buried 26 June at Ipswich 

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/124257096 

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/104914527   

              Ellen 8 Daughter Co. Limerick, 
Ireland 

Father died in 
Quarantine 

N RC Moved to Sydney in 1866 and became a nun. Ellen was professed in St Patrick’s Church in 1869. She was the first member of the order of Sisters 
of Mercy to take the veil in New South Wales. As Mother Mary Stanislaus, she served at St Patrick’s and St Brigid’s convent in Mosman, and was 
Head Superior at Monte Sant’ Angelo in North Sydney. ‘A most edifying religious,’ was Mother Mary Stanislaus, ‘possessed of extraordinary 
devotion to Our Lady. Her personality was magnetic, and this won her hosts of friends, particularly among the children’ 
Died 23 May 1924. 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/115299378  

              Patrick 5 
(according to 
emigration 
records, but 
actually he 
was 3; born 17 
March 1847) 

Son Co. Limerick, 
Ireland 

Father died in 
Quarantine 

N RC Baptised 19 Mar 1846 in Pallasgreen, Limerick.  
Left school at 12, became carpenter; 1871 studied Law; 1874 admitted to Bar, became one of highest earning barristers of the times. 
8 Jan 1879 married Anne Catherine Thynne; 1888 built home Eulalia at Coorparoo (later made into historic village ‘Early Street); 1890 appointed 
to Bench of Supreme Court of QLD as senior Puisne Judge – ‘The Honourable Mr Justice Real’. 
10 June 1928: died at Eulalia, Coorparoo; Buried at Toowong. 
For much more detail, see: 
Australian Dictionary of Biography: http://adb.anu.edu.au/biography/real-patrick-8169 
Supreme Court profile: http://www.sclqld.org.au/judicial-papers/judicial-profiles/profiles/preal 
Death: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/21295469  
Obituary: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/178672157  
Obituary: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/21295947 

 
Photo from State Library of QLD 

REILLY, James 27  Laborer Dublin, 
Ireland 

Parents Hugh 
and Catherine 
Reilly, living in 
Dublin; Sister in 
Pt Phillip 

B RC  

                  Bridget 23 Dressmak
er 

Dublin, 
Ireland 

Parents Patrick 
& Ann SHEEKY 
(or Sheehy?), 

B RC  

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/97514950
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/124257096
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/104914527
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/115299378
http://adb.anu.edu.au/biography/real-patrick-8169
http://www.sclqld.org.au/judicial-papers/judicial-profiles/profiles/preal
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/21295469
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/178672157
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/21295947


living in Dublin  

                  Rosanna 3 Daughter Dublin, 
Ireland 

  N RC  

                   Hugh 1 Son Dublin, 
Ireland 

  N RC  

SAL(L)ISBURY, Isaac 
(Not on embarkation 
list) 

36 Farm 
Laborer 

Co. 
Somerset, 
Eng 

Mother Ann 
Hayward, living 
in Somerset; 
Two children 
died in 
Quarantine 

R C of E Had another daughter called Mary Anne in Bris 16 Jan 1856 (after first Mary Anne died).  
Also had Samuel Mudford Isaac in 1853 in Brisbane  
1851 employed by W. Sutton at Breakfast Creek; land transactions [Bothwell] 
24 January: Isaac Salisbury took his employer Mr Sutton to the Court of Petty Sessions for non-payment of wages. Sutton agreed to pay him and 
the case was dismissed. Queensland State Archives Item ID518885, Register - depositions (1850-1854) 
1868 in PO Directories as farmer at Breakfast Creek;  
Became guardian of his wife’s children in 1887 http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/19926169 
Insolvent 1887 http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3463886  
21 Nov 1893: died at Slacks Creek aged 83: Death notice  http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3569651  
   

SALISBURY, (née 
MUDFORD) Anne 
(Not on embarkation 
list) 

34 Wife Co. 
Somerset, 
Eng 

Parents Samuel 
and Fanny 
Mudford, father 
living in Co. 
Somerset;  
Two children 
died in 
Quarantine 

N C of E See notes for husband above. 
Her brother emigrated in 1859; 
Anne died 1 May 1891 in QLD; Death notice 1891: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3525622  

                         Jane 
(Not on embarkation 
list) 

13 Daughter Co. 
Somerset, 
Eng 

Convalescent 
(September 
1850); 
Brother & Sister 
died in 
Quarantine 

R C of E Married Benjamin Best on 1 Sep 1856 in Brisbane (or 1859?); 
Had a son William Mudford Best in Oct 1856 in Brisbane;  
Her husband died 1907; 
Jane died 30 Sept 1918 at Sandgate. 
 

                    Charlotte 
(Not on embarkation 
list) 

11 Daughter Co. 
Somerset, 
Eng 

Brother & Sister 
died in 
Quarantine 

R C of E 11 Feb 1858 married James Keech in Brisbane; he died 1874;  
Charlotte remarried 1878 to George Thompson; she had son 1879,  
Charlotte died 9 Jan 1920 
Funeral notice: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/180967294  
Buried at Toowong 1920; 
May have been the Mrs G. Thompson in the ‘Living pioneer colonists’ article: 

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/19926169
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3463886
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3569651
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3525622
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/180967294


 
Charlotte Thompson nee Salisbury 
From The Queenslander, 7 Aug 1909, p62. 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/page/2496694, no.179 

                          John 
(Not on embarkation 
list) 

10 Son Co. 
Somerset, 
Eng 

Brother & Sister 
died in 
Quarantine 

R C of E 13 May 1864 married Elizabeth Andrews in Brisbane 
1865-1876 had children 
Labourer of Humpy Bong 
Admitted to Brisbane hospital 16 Oct with inflammation of lungs, died 21st Oct 1884: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/184995733 
 

                 Mary Anne 
(Not on embarkation 
list) 

8 Daughter Co. 
Somerset, 
Eng 

Died in 
Quarantine 

N C of E  

                          Eliza 
(name Selina crossed 
out) 
(Not on embarkation 
list) 

5 Daughter Co. 
Somerset, 
Eng 

Brother & Sister 
died in 
Quarantine 

N C of E  28 May 1862 married John Martin in Bris; 
1863-1893: 13 children born in Brisbane 
17 May 1913 died, buried in Toowong 

                  Male child 
Born on voyage 

infant Son Born on 
Voyage 
23 April 

Died in last days 
of the voyage 

N C of E  

SLATTERY, Edmund 
(Edward) 

30 Shepherd Co. 
Tipperary, 
Ireland 

Parents John 
and Catherine 
Slattery, father 
living in 
Tipperary; Had 
son, John, in 
1851, Moreton 
Bay district; 
Daughter 
Catherine died 
at Sea 

B RC Queensland State Archives Item ID518885, Register - depositions (1850-1854): 

• Brisbane, 17 Dec 1851: Slattery took his employer, Daniel Peterson to court for non-payment of wages. Transcription of court notes: 
 

Edward Slattery being sworn, states: since I entered Mr Peterson’s service he’s hunted me with a big stick called Jack the devil. On the 11th of December Mr Peterson 

ordered me off his premises & told me to come up to his place & he’d pay me. William Lacy was standing near but there was no one with me but myself. When I asked 

Mr Peterson for my wages he said he’d make me work my six months. Two men named Coussi & Leighton were present when Mr Peterson’s conduct induced me to 

leave when he discharged me I was afraid of my life. 

On the 11th he discharged me he didn’t give me a written discharge – he offered me my wages due. I had been with him twenty one days. I swear he didn’t say he’d ay 

me twenty one days wages after taking out the summons I demanded wages. I demanded six months wages. I refused to go to work after I had summonsed him until 

then I didn’t. he ordered me to go to work & I wouldn’t work for him. I recollect he ordered to clean up a boat. He said I didn’t know how to clean a boat. He took the 

bucket & showed me how to clean the boat. He gave me a new scrubbing brush. I didn’t throw the brush in the bottom of the boat and I didn’t refuse to work until he 

discharged me. I did eat and drink in Mr Peterson’s house after he discharged me but I bought it myself. I didn’t offer to fight with Mr Peterson there was no written 

discharge given me. 

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/page/2496694
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/184995733


It was in consequence of the verbal discharge I refused to work. I asked him for food & he wouldn’t give it me. 

He ordered me to work after the verbal discharge & I refused to do so. Prior to summonsing I asked for 21 days wages.  

Alice Slattery being sworn states: I am the wife of Edward Slattery. I was with my husband in the service of Mr Peterson. Mr Peterson told my husband to go off his 

premises last week. They had an argument because we wouldn’t sleep up stairs. I had an objection to sleep up stairs because Mr Peterson came into my room and took 

me by the hand & said he wouldn’t disturb me. I was in dread of him & I objected to sleep up stairs & the next day my husband had a quarrel with him. This was three or 

four days after we entered his service. It was before the second Sunday I was there. He pressed my hand. Cross examined by… I made a complaint next day to my 

husband & the maid. He went through my bed room, twice & came to my bed twice on to the veranda. When he took me by the hand I was complaining of mosquito 

bites on my legs. All Mr Peterson told me was to lie still & be quiet. I didn’t make any noise at the time.  

Joseph Passe Cousset being sworn states: I live at Mr Alcock’s in South Brisbane. The office in which I work is on Mr Peterson’s wharf. I know Edward Slattery he works 

for Mr Peterson. I saw Edward Slattery scrubbing a boat at the wharf on the 11th. I heard a noise. Slattery told Mr Peterson he could never please him and if he wishes to 

pay him he’d go away from his service. Mr Peterson said be damned to you. I shall pay you. The sooner you’re off my premises the better come up to the house & I’ll pay 

you. 

Cross examined by Dist. Attorney: I didn’t hear what amount he offered to pay. I saw the parties. I saw Slattery scrubbing the boat.  

Alexander Leighton being sworn states: I am a printer in Mr Alcock’s office at South Brisbane. I know Edward Slattery. I saw him scrubbing a boat at Mr Peterson’s 

wharf on the 11th. Slattery daid he couldn’t please him & he’d better let him go. Peterson took the brush out of his hand & said be off my premises & be damned to you 

& I’ll pay you. 

Cross examined: I was looking out at the office door at the time, not 100 yards from the boat. 

Ann Higgins being sworn states: I am a servant of Mr Peterson’s. I know Mrs Slattery: she complained to me that MR Peterson had been pressing her hand. I don’t know 

what day. That’s all she told me. She told me seriously. 

Cross examined: I don’t know whether it was the morning or some nights – I think it was the night after I heard Slattery say he’d put up the shutters & do no more work. 

Mr Peterson said he’d pay him the wages due. Slattery said he wanted six months wages. I heard this conversation when Mr Peterson said this he said he’d stop with 

him and fight it out for six months I don’t know whether he went out to work after that.  

Mr Peterson asked him if he’d stop and fight for six months & he said he would stop & fight for six months. 

The Bench ordered balance of £1.13.6 wages 13 & 2 ½ to be paid by Mr Peterson to Edward Slattery and cancel the agreement. Mr Peterson to pay 13. 2 ½ & 18 costs. 

 
Was a police constable at Redfern c1856 http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/12984946  
Had three more children in quick succession. 
Police sergeant at Redfern 1857  http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article /60264998  
and 1858  http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article /60425498  
Died 1860  http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article /13035873  
[Note: NSW BDM: Edward Slattery died in Sydney 1860 (parents John and Elizabeth)] 
 
 

                     Alice 
(Alley) 

28 Wife Co. 
Tipperary, 
Ireland 

Daughter 
Catherine died 
at Sea 

N RC Died – widow of Edward Slattery, at Redfern. Mother of T.M Slattery http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/13656613  
 
Had a child (Mary) born c1858; died aged 4 in 1862; Edmund was already dead by then  
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/60519355 
 
Had a son, John Bede Slattery, who died 1883:  http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/110559200  
 
Had a daughter, Anne, who married in 1878 http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/13411124  

                     Thomas 5 Son Co. 
Tipperary, 
Ireland 

Sister died at 
Sea 

N RC Bio in ADB: http://adb.anu.edu.au/biography/slattery-thomas-michael-8454  
 
Council clerk at Sydney, 1860 http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/13044632  
1867 married Annie O’Connor 
1885 Wife Annie died 
1886 married Agnes O’Connor, his deceased wife’s sister http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/138955954 
1895: comments on his retirement: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/111108697 

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/12984946
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article%20/60264998
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article%20/60425498
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article%20/13035873
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/13656613
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/60519355
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/110559200
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/13411124
http://adb.anu.edu.au/biography/slattery-thomas-michael-8454
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/13044632
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/138955954
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/111108697


1903: libel case  
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/104516537 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/14563622 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/14562307  

 
1905: Thomas M. Slattery was charged with theft of property and convicted, sentenced to 3 ½ years hard labor  

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/127556405  
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/25378655  

Appealed:  http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/189670619 
Conviction quashed; Slattery released http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/154002462  
Criticism of Slattery: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/114726950  
 
Died 1920. Obituary: became lawyer, represented Boorowa in Legislative Assembly from 1889 

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/15899827  
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/103479066  

 
This article shows Slattery’s connection with Charles O’Brien and confirms that he was a passenger of the Emigrant: 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/173777509  
 

 

Photos of Slattery: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/104655256 ; http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/165302464  

And his family: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/165299116 

                     Catherine  
(in embarkation list 
as 1-year-old boy) 

Infant Daughter  Ireland? Died at sea 3 
June, diarrhoea 

N RC MBC 7 Sept 1850 – Kemp’s account of death: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3716014 

SYNOTT/SYRETT 
James 

21 Laborer  Co. 
Buckingham, 
England 

Died in 
Quarantine 

B C of E It was reported that on 3 September, two men died; that on 5 September, Maria Trowbridge and two other adults died; and the next day, 
another. The surgeon’s notes report numbers but not names for these days. By process of elimination it has been deduced that of the unnamed 
deaths on 3 September (two males), 5 September (two) and 6 September (one), the victims were Charles Hallett, Robert Frith, John Hector, 
James Syrett or James Real 

                  Jane 18 Wife England Died in 
Quarantine, 19 
Sep 1850 

B C of E  

TROWBRIDGE,  Josia
h 

30 Farm 
Laborer 

Stratford, Co. 
Wiltshire, 
Eng 

Parents William 
and Rebecca 
Trowbridge, 
father living in 

B C of E 22 Aug 1850 was a witness into death of Elizabeth Wade; 
11 Dec 1850 married Frances Frith, widow of Robert Frith, in Moreton Bay District (also passengers of Emigrant) 
1851 had child at Ipswich 
1858 had child at Clarence Town, NSW 

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/104516537
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/14563622
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/14562307
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/127556405
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/25378655
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/189670619
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/154002462
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/114726950
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/15899827
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/103479066
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/173777509
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/104655256
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/165302464
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/165299116
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3716014


Stratford; Wife 
died in 
Quarantine 

1862-1867 had children at Newcastle, NSW 
Suicide by drowning at Leichhardt 1898, NSW: 

 http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/108765733 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/98676560  
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/133599933 

 

            Maria 
   (née LODER)  

25 Wife Co. Wiltshire, 
Eng 

Died in 
Quarantine, 5 
Sep 1850. 
Two sisters on 
board 

B C of E  

WALLACE, Henry 27 Farm 
Laborer 

King's 
County, 
Ireland 

Parents Richard 
and Mary 
Wallace, both 
living in King’s 
County;  
Brother in Pt 
Phillip 

B C of E 22 Aug 1850 was a witness at enquiry into death of Elizabeth Wade. 
According to family tree on Ancestry.com (unconfirmed): 
married Mary Anne Blackwell: 13/12/1846 at Shinrone Church of Ireland, Kings County 

• Birth of son: 1848 • Tipperary. Ireland: William Wallace (1848–1920) 

• Birth of daughter: 21 Feb 1849 • Drumakeenan Kings County Ireland: Elizabeth 

• Birth of Son: 2/10/1851 • Brisbane Queensland Australia: Robert Wallace (1851–1927) 

• Birth of Daughter: 14 Feb 1855 • Greta, Victoria, Australia (Mulgrave): Mary Anne Wallace (1855–1896) 

• Birth of Son: 11 July 1856 • Mulgrave, Victoria, Australia: Henry Wallace (1856–1943) 

• Birth of Son: 25 Jan 1858 • Mulgrave, Victoria, Australia: Thomas Wallace (1858–1915) 

• Birth of Daughter: 28/5/1859 • Mulgrave, Victoria, Australia: Sarah Jane Wallace (1859–1946) 

• Birth of Daughter: 12/9/1860 • Mulgrave Victoria Australia: Matilda Wallace (1860–1931) 

• Birth of Son: 22 Aug 1862 • Mulgrave, Victoria, Australia: Thomas Wallace (1862–) 

• Birth of Daughter: 1864 • Moyhu Victoria Australia: Rebecca Wallace (1864–1882) 

Death: 16 August 1876 at Oxley shire, Victoria, Australia 

                  Mary Anne 26 Wife Co. 
Tipperary, 
Ireland 

Parents William 
& Elizabeth 
BLACKWELL, 
both living in 
Tipperary; 
Sister Catherine 
Blackwell on 
board 

B C of E According to family tree on Ancestry.com (unconfirmed): 
Born 12 Oct 1823 at Toura, Kings County, Ireland 
Died 5 APR 1905 at Moyhu, Victoria, Australia 

                  William 2 Son Co. 
Tipperary, 
Ireland 

  N C of E According to family tree on Ancestry.com (unconfirmed): 
Died April 20, 1920 in Beechworth 

                   Elizabeth 1 Daughter King's 
County, 
Ireland 

  N C of E According to family tree on Ancestry.com (unconfirmed): 
Born 21 Feb 1849 in Drumakeenan Kings County Ireland 
Died 6 May 1872 in Mohyu, Victoria, Australia  

WALSH, Thomas 
(Not on embarkation 
list) 
[Also Welsh/ Welch] 

39 Farm 
Laborer 

Co. Limerick, 
Ireland 

Parents Patrick 
and Anty Walsh, 
both dead;  
Two children in 
Pt Phillip 

B RC Died 1875 in Victoria (Source: descendant Cynthia Foster) 
 

                Honora 
 (née MERAN)   
(Not on embarkation 
list) 

38 Wife Co. Limerick, 
Ireland 

Parents James 
and Catherine 
Meran, both 
living in Co. 
Limerick; Two 

R RC Died 1875 in Victoria (Source: descendant Cynthia Foster) 
 

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/108765733
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/98676560
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/133599933


children in Pt 
Phillip 

                James (Son) 
(Not on embarkation 
list) 

22 Farm 
Laborer 

Co. Limerick, 
Ireland 

  B RC  

                John (Son) 
(Not on embarkation 
list) 

15 Farm 
Laborer 

Co. Limerick, 
Ireland 

  B RC Died 1907 (Aus Death Index) at Albury, NSW (unconfirmed) 

                Thomas 
(Not on embarkation 
list) 

12 Son Co. Limerick, 
Ireland 

  B RC Died 1929 aged 94 at Kyneton, Victoria  
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/204225320  
Another 2 siblings Patrick and Catherine were already in Port Phillip. 
They settled in Williamstown but after a period of time the government moved them on and granted land in Piper’s Creek which they had to 
improve to actually own it. 
Thomas Walsh was a farmer as was his brother James. Their parents both died in 1875 and are buried in the Melbourne Cemetery along with 
daughter Catherine Gallagher nee Walsh and also Patrick Walsh who died after falling from a wagon while drunk and drowned in the river near 
Kyneton. 
Thomas married Ellen Gallagher in 1865 and had 7 children. 
Source: descendant Cynthia Foster 
 

WATERSON, Henry 30 Laborer Co. 
Tipperary, 
Ireland 

Died on Board/ 
at anchor at 
Moreton Bay 10 
Aug  

B RC Death reported in Moreton Bay Courier 7 Sept 1850 http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3716014  

WATERSON, Mary 
(not on list) 

26 Wife of 
Henry 

Co. 
Tipperary, 
Ireland 

Died at sea 10 
July 1850 of 
fever 

  RC Death reported in Moreton Bay Courier 7 Sept 1850 http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3716014 

                      Patrick 8 Son Co. 
Tipperary, 
Ireland 

Orphan. Mother 
died at Sea 

N RC Mary Connor took the Waterson orphans to Sydney to the Catholic Orphan School. 
 
Her husband, Martin Payton, took Patrick Waterson on as an indentured apprentice on his property at Camden. 
 
On 31 March, 1861, Patrick absconded from his employment and was believed to have headed towards Albury. Described as four foot ten inches 
high and had a fair complexion, fair hair and blue eyes. 
(NSW Police Gazette, 4 April 1861, p.2) 
 
According to family history, the Payton family maintained contact with Patrick Waterson. He was probably this man, Patrick ‘Watson’, who died 
in Burrowa (Booroowa) in 1907. According to the obituary (https://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/114457268) this man had married and 
had 11 children. He had been in the district for over 44 years and ‘was always looked upon as a good townsman, diligent, energetic, trustworthy, 
and intelligent’. He had served as an alderman on the local council and had been a licensee of the Royal Hotel. The obituary is mistaken in some 
of the details of this man’s arrival in the country (it states he was only 3 on emigration and arrived in Port Phillip) but it does state that his 
parents died on the voyage and that he had been employed for years at Menangle by Martin Payten. I am confident it is the same man. 
 
My earlier research had suggested that he might have died in 1868, but since the above obituary came to light, this appears to be INCORRECT. 
(The body of a Patrick Waterson, seaman, was found floating in the Yarra River at Melbourne in October 1868. This young man, believed to be 22 
years old, of unknown parentage, was a sailor attached to the schooner Martha Lavinia. He had left the schooner in a state ‘not perfectly sober’ 
on 11 October. He was last seen in the middle of that night, drunk, in Bourke Street in the company of a ‘disreputable’ woman. When his body 
was found on 19 October, it was judged to have been a week in the water. The verdict of his inquest was ‘accidentally drowned’ 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/177004714) 
The drowned man may have been the same Patrick Waterson as the following: 

• Darlinghurst Gaol description book: 1864. Patrick Waterson, ship: Sandringham, from Ireland, RC, Trade: seaman; age 20 Height 5'7"; 
hair dark, eyes blue; R & W 

• Patrick Waterson committed by J Cullen 30 June 1864 - offence: disobedience; sentence ?;  5 July: to W? Police Office 

• Date: Aug 27, 1864; committed by Walter Church; offence desertion; sentence 4 wks labour, disposed of: sent to ship ? Sept 

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/204225320
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3716014
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3716014
https://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/114457268
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/177004714


                      Edward 6 Son Co. 
Tipperary, 
Ireland 

Orphan. Mother 
died at Sea 

N RC Admitted to Catholic Orphan School in Sydney 
Died and was buried 6 July 1852 

                      Elizabeth 2 Daughter Co. 
Tipperary, 
Ireland 

Orphan. Mother 
died at Sea 

N RC Admitted to Catholic Orphan School in Sydney 
Died and was buried 5 November 1851. 

 

Single females 

Name Age/DOB Calling Native place   Educ
ation 

Religion  Notes from Quarantine/Passenger lists/ Col Sec letters/  
And Fate after 1850 

BENNETT, Eliz. 
Bridget 

21 Domestic Co. 
Westmeath, 
Ireland 

Parents Thomas 
and Ann, mother 
living in 
Westmeath; 
 In Hospital (List 
of 26 September 
1850) 

N RC  

BIRMINGHAM, 
Matilda 

22 Nurse Dublin, Ireland Parents George 
and Matilda, 
both dead; 
Cousin Louisa 
FARRELL arrived 
in Sydney 
27Aug  

B C of E BDM: Jane Matilda Bermingham married Henry Pogmore in QLD [29 March 1851 at Moreton Bay]; 
1851-1861 Children born in QLD registered as ‘Moore’ 
Died 30 Sep 1906  
 

BLACKWELL, 
Catherine 

19 Domestic Tipperary, 
Ireland 
(Selected from 
King’s County) 

Parents William 
and Betsy, living 
in Tipperary; 
Sister Mary Ann 
and Brother-in-
Law, Henry 
Wallace, on 
Board 

B C of E Died Wangaratta 1906 (From Ancestry.com - unconfirmed) 

BURBEROW, Fanny 
(Not on embarkation 
list) 
  

18 Governess London, Eng Mother (ship's 
Matron) died on 
Board; 
In hospital on 26 
Sept list 

B C of E Married 20 July 1852: Frances Jane Burberon to Joseph Longman by special licence at Ipswich. 
Joseph Longman settled in Drayton and made several land purchases there, but the couple appear to have separated early: 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3712588 
 
 

BURBEROW, Mrs 
Mary 
Matron nee Mary 
Foster Hackett 
(Not on embarkation 
list)  

56 Matron London, Eng Died at sea from 
‘decay of nature’ 
19 June 

  C of E Born Mary Foster Hill 
Married William Hackett 1818 
Married William Burberow, widower, 1827 
William Burberow died 1831 

BYRNE, Jane 
(Not on embarkation 
list)  

25 Domestic Carlow, Ireland Parents John & 
Mary BYRNE 

R RC NSW BDM: a Jane Byrne married a Robert Byrne in 1853 
A Jane Byrne died at Maitland 1881 and Sydney 1888 (parents John and Mary) 

CAMPBELL, Anne 19 Domestic County Clare, 
Ireland/ 
(Embarkation 

Parents James 
and Biddy, both 
dead;  

R RC 2 Dec 1850 married James Welsh/ Walsh/ Welch; 
Was to be paid 1 shilling and 6 pence per day for her work in the quarantine hospital; 
Had children in QLD; 



list: says she is 
22 and 
selected from 
Co. Cavan) 

Nurse in 
Quarantine 
hospital 

Died 1909 at Cleveland http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/174866851  ; according to her funeral notice, her husband James was still alive then. 
Buried at Cleveland cemetery 
(Note that the marriage registration gives her husband’s name as James Walsh, but in the death notice it is Welch) 
 

CARROLL, Ellen 20 Domestic Tipperary, 
Ireland 

Parents John 
and Hannah 
Carroll, both 
dead; 
Brother, Patrick, 
on Board 

R RC QLD BDM: Ellen Carroll married railway worker John Rafter in 1861 at Ipswich;  
Had at least 3 children; 
Probably lived at Grandchester (husband died there in 1923 aged 91:  
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/22646139 )   
Ellen Rafter (father John Carroll, mother * McGrath, aged 57, born Ireland) died in 1887 in QLD. 

CHARLTON, Ann  20 Domestic Leicester, Eng Died at sea 26 
July; 
Died after 
entering Bass 
Strait 

     

CONNOR, Mary 
(Not on embarkation 
list) 

20 Domestic Limerick, 
Ireland 

Parents Timothy 
and Mary; 
Uncle and Aunt 
in 
Campbelltown 

R RC Looked after the Waterson and Hallett orphans and took them to Sydney; was not paid for helping like the other helpers in quarantine but was given free 
passage to Sydney in lieu of payment; Mary travelled to Sydney on 'the Eagle' with the orphans. [Steamer, 150 tons, Captain Allen]. Departed Moreton Bay 4 
Dec, arrived Sydney 7 Dec. Travelling in steerage. 
Married Martin Payton 21 June 1852 in Campbelltown; 
Had 12 children 
Died 1903 at Menangle. Very highly regarded in the district. 
Obituary http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/108252232 

COONEY, Johanna 26 Domestic Tipperary, 
Ireland 

Parents Charles 
and Mary 
Cooney, father 
dead, mother 
living in 
Tipperary; 
Brother & Sister 
on Board 

N RC  

COONEY, Margaret 14 Domestic Tipperary, 
Ireland 

Parents Charles 
and Mary 
Cooney, father 
dead, mother 
living in 
Tipperary; 
Brother & Sister 
on Board 

R RC NSW BDM: A Margaret Cooney married John Hartigan in 1861;  
A Margaret Hartigan nee Cooney died aged 88 in 1917.  
Death at Surry Hills 1917:  http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/15763674 

CULLEN, Elizabeth 23 Domestic Leitrim, Ireland Parents Daniel 
and Mary 
Cullen, both 
living in 
Castlecuirn, 
Leitrim ; 
Brother in Pt 
Phillip 

B C of E  

CULLEN, Jane 21 Domestic Leitrim, Ireland Parents Daniel 
and Mary 
Cullen, both 
living in 
Castlecuirn, 
Leitrim ; 

B C of E Jane T. Cullen wrote about the voyage to the BLFES, published in the Penny Emigrant magazine, praising the Captain and Mrs Kemp; 
May have been a teacher in Victoria? http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/192279647 ; 
Vic BDM: a Jane Teresa Cullen died in Victoria 1914; father David, mother Mary; age 85 (right age: this is probably her) 
 

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/174866851
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/22646139
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/108252232
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/15763674
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/192279647


Brother in Pt 
Phillip 

CULLEN, Margaret 19 Domestic Sligo, Ireland  Parents Daniel 
and Mary 
Cullen, both 
living in 
Castlecuirn, 
Leitrim ; 
Brother in Pt 
Phillip 

B C of E  

CUNNINGHAM, 
Anne 

    Westmeath, 
Ireland 

Brother on 
board; 
Died at sea, 3 
July 

  RC  

DAUBE, Elizabeth 24 Domestic County Meath, 
Ireland 
(on 
Embarkation 
list she is 
noted as being 
selected from 
Co. Clare.) 

Parents Thomas 
and Elizabeth 
Daube, mother 
living in Co. 
Clare;  
In hospital on 
list of 26 
September 1850 

B C of E Was a nurse in Q hospital, to be paid 1 shilling and 6 pence per day for services 
From Ancestry.com (unconfirmed): 
Eliza Dobe married William Kennedy (1817-1887) , lived in Bundamba, Ipswich; had 3 children; died 18 Feb 1891 of umbilical hernia strangulation – Ipswich; 
buried at Ipswich 
Death: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/123048832 

DWYER, Johanna 
(Not on Embarkation 
list) 

33 Domestic Galway, 
Ireland 

Died in 
Quarantine, 27 
Aug 1850 

B RC  

EVANS, Elizabeth 35 Domestic Langford, 
Somerset, Eng 

Parents Joseph 
and Sarah 
Shelburn, father 
living at ‘Wairn’, 
Co. Somerset.; 
Sister in New 
Zealand 

B RC 8 April 1851 married William Smith, Moreton Bay 
1856 had child/ children 
12 Mar 1877 died. (father Joseph Hilburn, mother Sarah nee Starkey) 

FORD, Anne  19 Domestic Galway, 
Ireland  

Parents James 
and Mary Forde, 
mother living in 
Galway; 
Sister in Pt 
Phillip; 
Was a patient in 
Quarantine on 
26 Sept list 

R RC Nurse in Quarantine station; was to be paid 1 shilling & 6p per day for services; 
 

FURPHY, Jane 28 Dress Maker Armagh, 
Ireland  

 Mother died at 
anchor, 
Moreton Bay 8 
Aug 1850 

B C of E Death: 13 Jul 1869 in Lancefield, Victoria (Unconfirmed, from Ancestry.com) 

FURPHY, Elizabeth 19 on 
arrival 
lists, 26 on 
embarkati
on list 

Dress Maker Armagh, 
Ireland 

Mother died at 
anchor, 
Moreton Bay 8 
Aug 1850 

B C of E Death: 14 Aug 1898 in Kew, Victoria (Unconfirmed, from Ancestry.com) 

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/123048832


GRACE, Julia 28 Domestic Kildare, Ireland Parents James & 
Julia GRACE, 
both dead 

R RC  

GRADY, Margaret 24 Domestic County Clare, 
Ireland 

Parents James 
and Julia Grady, 
father in 
Maitland NSW, 
mother in Co. 
Clare 

B RC  

HARDWIDGE, 
Charlotte 
(Or Hartwich) 

19 Domestic Long Ashton, 
Somerset, Eng 

Parents James 
and Harriet 
Hardwidge, 
mother living in 
Bristol; 
In hospital on 
list of 26 
September 1850 

B C of E Nursed in the hospital; to be paid 1 shilling 6p per day for services 
21 Sept most hospital attendants were sick;  
Married emigrant Daniel Corkhill 24 May 1851 (NB bdm has her as Charlotte Hardwick).; 
Had children 1851-1861; 
Husband was a blacksmith and wheelwright with property in Myall St Dalby from August 1851: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3714378  
Selling property in Myall Street in 1860: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3718084  
Daniel died 1862 (QLD BDM)  
Selling shop 1864:  http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/1258634 
Died 12 Dec 1887; 
Charlotte is probably the single lady mentioned in the ‘Penny Emigrant’ as showing a reference from Rev Joseph Wolff, the ‘celebrated missionary’ (Only 2 
single women from Somerset, where he lived, and she is the only C of E one.) 

LODER, Martha 18  Domestic Salisbury, 
Wiltshire, Eng 

Parents George 
and Sarah Loder, 
living in 
Salisbury;  
Sister, Maria 
Trowbridge (and 
brother-in-law), 
on Board 

B C of E 23 Dec 1850 married Francis Lyon at Moreton Bay, also a passenger of the Emigrant 
Had children 1851-1864; lived at Oxley, Brisbane. 
See also photo in ‘Living pioneer colonists’ (number 272) http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/21829670  
Died 29 Aug 1910 
Funeral http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/19653198  
Buried at South Brisbane location 4A-111 

 
Martha Lyon nee Loder 
From The Queenslander, 7 Aug 1909, p62. 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/page/2496694 (no. 272) 

LODER, Catherine – 
according to 
embarkation list (NB 
MBC called her 
Caroline) 

15 (MBC 
said 16 
but 
embarkati
on list 

  Salisbury, 
Wiltshire, Eng 

Parents George 
and Sarah Loder, 
living in 
Salisbury;  
Sister, Maria 

  C of E  

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3714378
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3718084
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/1258634
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/21829670
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/19653198
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/page/2496694


says 15) Trowbridge (and 
brother-in-law), 
on Board; 
Died at sea 3 
Aug; Died after 
entering Bass 
Strait  

LYON, Anne 30 Domestic St Andrews, 
Cranford, / 
Northampton, 
Eng 

Parents William 
and Mary Lyon, 
both dead; 
Brother (Francis) 
on Board 

B C of E On list of the sick 23 Aug (Col Sec letters) suffering ‘nervousness and weakness’; 
Married James Lee 2 Feb 1852; children born 1852-1860; 1868 James Lee bricklayer (Bris PO directories) 
Witnessed Mary Ball’s marriage to Edward Wheeler 
31 Mar 1900: Died in Brisbane; father William Lyon, mother Annie nee Smith; 
Death notice http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/183924699  
Possibly buried at South Brisbane as Ann Lee (no age given, buried 1 April 1900) location 4A-112 

MA(U)NSELL, 
Catherine 

22 Domestic Mt Shannon, 
Limerick, 
Ireland  

Parents James 
and Kate, living 
in Limerick. 
Brother on 
Board 

B RC Was the first to get sick (8 May) 
1854: married James Cahill, another passenger of the Emigrant 
1855: Ellen born 
1857: James born  (NB this James was resident at Petrie Tce in 1877) 
1857: Michael born (this year is taken from Catherine's death cert, on which the ages of some of the children appear to be wrong. His record not found in birth 
certs) 
1859: Edward Joseph born  
1860: unnamed daughter born and died 
1861: Patrick born 
1863: Sarah born 
1865: John born 
 
1868:  
James was a plantation overseer for the Caboolture Cotton Company which opened in about 1860 (http://www.qgso.qld.gov.au/products/reports/triumph-
tropics/triumph-tropics-1959-pt3-ch27.pdf) and failed by 1873 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/1308493  
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/1368788  
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/70479759    
 
1872: Catherine born 
1873: William Francis born ( Catherine's death cert in 1900 puts his age at 33, which would mean he was born in 1867, but QLD bdm puts his birth as 1873. 
Several ages are wrong on death cert) 
 
(Also had 2 boys and 1 girl who died before Catherine) 
 
1878: 21 April:  
James died in Harcourt St, Fortitude Valley: Occupation: Government overseer; Died age 52 of English Cholera, sick 2 days; informant: son Michael Cahill, 
labourer, and Sarah Hobbins 
 
1890: son Edward Joseph died aged 30, on 25 Oct http://trove.nla.gov.au/ndp/del/printArticlePdf/20287403/3?print=n  
1892, Jan.: son Patrick died at the Brisbane hospital http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3536636  
 And http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3536370 ;  
1900, 24 Dec: 
Catherine died at Harcourt St, New Farm, aged 71, of exhaustion, cancer - sick 2 years. Buried 25/12 at Toowong, location  7-19-2 with husband James; Son 
Michael still living with her 
1907: son Michael died 
1929: son John died 
1933: daughter Ellen died  
1935: son William Francis died  
1940: son James died  
1941: daughter Sarah died 

McMAHON, Julia 21 Domestic County Clare, Parents John R RC Julia McMahon married Thomas John Ryan (fellow-passenger of the Emigrant) 27 Feb 1851. The couple had children 1851-1867; lived at ‘Golden Vale’ Farm, 

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/183924699
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/1308493
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/1368788
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/70479759
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3536636
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3536370


(Not on embarkation 
list) 

Ireland and Maria, both 
dead; Uncle and 
Aunt at Port 
Phillip; Sister on 
Board 

Emu Vale, Danderoo, near Warwick. 

Julia died 8 March 1907. 

According to her obituary in the Warwick Argus, 9 March 1907 (Reproduced in Bothwell, Kay. (1998).  The Voyage and Quarantine of the Emigrant: 1850. K. 
Bothwell, [Brisbane]): 

• Arrived over 40 years ago in QLD, then lived a short time at Ipswich then moved to the Darling Downs 

• “Golden Vale” was one of the ‘finest farms in the fertile valley of Killarney’ 

• Ryans owned the Bald Hill Ridge on Yangan road then bought Golden Vale; he divided his land between his sons  

• ‘Benevolent and hospitable to all, especially sportsmen’ 

• She had ailed for 18 months 

• Survived by 4 sons: John, Michael, William and James Ryan of Danderoo; and 3 daughters: Mrs George Campbell, Danderoo, Mrs J.T. Wallace, & Mrs M. 
Duggan, Warwick. 

 

 
Photograph courtesy of Kevin and Pat Haley 

McMAHON, Biddy 
(Not on embarkation 
list) 

20 Domestic County Clare, 
Ireland 

Parents John 
and Maria, both 
dead; Uncle and 
Aunt at Port 
Phillip; Sister on 
Board 

N RC 27 Jan 1852: Bridget McMahon married John Henry Jackson (ex-convict) at the Roman Catholic Church in Ipswich. 
They went to live in the Logan area where John worked on Compigne Station 
Children: 

• John Thomas c1853 (at Compigne). Died of epilepsy and gangrene at age 12 on 31 May 1866. 

• Mary 23 May 1858 (South Brisbane) 

• 27 May 1858 Joseph 

• William Patrick on 7 January 1861 at Cleveland 

• Daniel Henry was born on 27 July 1863 at Dunwich on Stradbroke Island where his father, John Henry, had found work as a stone cutter 

• June 1866 Bridget gave birth to twins, Bridget and Edward. Bridget died 12 August 1866. Edward died 25 August 1866. 
Biddy died on 13 Aug 1866. 



  
Photograph courtesy of Kevin and Pat Haley 

MAHONEY, Mary 
(Mary Anne 
Mahoney) 

19 Domestic London, Eng Parents James 
and Mary; father 
living in London; 
Brother & sister 
in Melbourne 

B C of E Gave evidence at enquiry into Elizabeth Wade’s death; 
Written as ‘Moloney’ on Embarkation list (from Middlesex); 
Married seaman from the Emigrant James Hall on 25 March 1851 in Brisbane. (Hall absconded while ship was at anchor; was captured and sentenced to 14 
days with hard labour) 
Mary Anne was buried at South Brisbane cemetery on16/11/1905 with her husband James, who was buried 12/3/1895; location 8B-66 
 
 
 
                              
 
 
 

 

James Hall, seaman and husband of 

Mary Ann Mahoney. Photo courtesy of 

Jim Fenwick. 

 

Mary Ann Mahoney. 

Photo courtesy of Kate van Barneveld and 
Helen Crone 
 



MOORE, Julia 22 Domestic Clonmel, 
Tipperary, 
Ireland 

Parents William 
and Julia Moore, 
living in Co. 
Meath;  
Cousin in Sydney 

N RC  

O'BRIEN, Catherine 
(Not on embarkation 
list) 

23 Domestic Co. Kilkenny, 
Ireland  

Parents Michael 
and Margaret 
O’Brien, mother 
living at Co. 
Kilkenny; 
Convalescent 14 
August 1850 

N RC Married Thomas Gleeson (whose wife had died at sea – passengers of Emigrant) on 30 Nov 1850; 
NSW bdm: Catherine Gleeson, parents Michael and Margaret, died in Sydney, 1893 

QUINLAN, Anne 19 Domestic Tipperary, 
Ireland 

Cousin in 
Maitland 

N RC NSW bdm: an Anne Quinlan married a Thomas Samuel Owen in Mudgee in 1871; whether this was the same Anne Quinlan is unconfirmed 

ROE (RAE) , Anne 20 Domestic Co. Wexford, 
Ireland 

Parents John 
and Anastatia 
Roe, father living 
in Dublin;   

N RC An Anne Roe married James Hawkins in Moreton Bay district 30 May 1851; 
NSW bdm: ‘Annie Hawkins’, mother Anastasia, father Francis, died in Mudgee 1908. 
 
Unconfirmed from Ancestry.com: 

moved to Mudgee, had 7 kids; 
Died 18 Aug 1908 in Mudgee, New South Wales 

 
Death notice: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/157667403  
her uprightness of character and cheerful disposition had secured for her the friendship of a large proportion of the inhabitants. 

SAQUIN (DE SAQUI) 
Deborah 

19 Domestic 
servant 

London, Eng Parents John 
Emanuel 
deSaqui and –
Henriques , both 
living in London; 
 Sister in Sydney; 
in Hospital on 
Sept list 

B C of E Married John Stuart Beach 8 May 1851; on her marriage certificate her father is named as Adolphus John;  
Had children, husband had drapery and mixed business in Queen St then a brewery, lived at Bulimba then Spring Hill. 
She died 12 Aug 1907 – noted as ‘Dora’ Maria Beach; Funeral notice: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/19400028 

SUTTON, Amelia 20 Domestic 
servant 

Stapleton, Co. 
Gloucester, 
England 

Parents William 
and Ann Sutton, 
both living in 
Stapleton. 
Brother in Pt 
Phillip 

B C of E James Buckly (or Buckby) and fellow-passenger Anne Sutton married in 1851, QLD. However, the immigration list shows an Amelia Sutton not Anne. The 
embarkation list shows her as Anne; August list shows Amelia, as does the September list.  
James and Anne had several children, all born in QLD between 1851 and 1876 (see entry for James Buckby for details) 
 'Annie Maria Buckby' died in 1891, said she came from Gloucestershire and emigrated in 1850, father William Sutton. This is probably the Anne or Amelia on 
the Emigrant.  
She first went to live at Nundah, on what was then called the ‘German Station’ (where the German missionaries tried to convert the Aborigines); she went to 
live with the missionary Mr Neaker. Then she married and moved to Fortitude Valley in 1875 until her death in 1891. She died after a ‘long and painful illness’. 
(TB) 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/20296785  
Anne is buried at Nundah, location 11-1-19 

TULLY, Mary 
(Not on embarkation 
list) 

22 Domestic 
servant 

Co. Galway, 
Ireland  

Parents Michael 
and Sarah Tully, 
both dead;  
Uncle and Sister 
in Sydney 

B RC  

WADE, Elizabeth 18 Domestic 
servant 

London, Eng Died in 
Quarantine. 
Drowned c21 
Aug 

B C of E Mother Mary Ball (nee Shanks then Whittenbury then Wade then Ball.) See notes on Mary Ball. ‘Mary Elizabeth’ was born to Mary and Frederick Whittenbury 
on 8 June 1831. She was baptised three weeks later at the City of London Lying in Hospital, St Luke, in the County of Middlesex. She was baptised again as the 
daughter of John Wade at Rainham, Essex, on 24 August 1834, with her 10-year-old stepsister Emma Wade. 
Elizabeth was ‘melancholy’ on the days leading up to her death. She had been visiting her mother in the hospital. She drowned herself in less than 2 feet of 
water. Dr Mallon ‘worked on’ her for two hours without success. An enquiry was held into her death on the island. 

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/157667403
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/19400028
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/20296785


WADE, Emma 25  Domestic 
servant 

London, Eng Step-Mother on 
Board (Mary 
Ball); also sister 
and stepsisters; 
In Quarantine on 
26 Sept list 

B C of E Daughter of John and Charlotte Wade; her stepmother Mary Ball and Mary’s husband Joseph William Ball were on board. Emma was baptised at Rainham, 
Essex, on 24 August 1834 
28 June 1851 married George Heirdsfield, Moreton Bay District 
Children: 

1852: George born  
1854: William John born 
1857: Lucy born 
1859: Frederick born 
1861: Charles born 
1868: Elizabeth Margaret born 
1875: Emma died 

George Heirdsfield was an ex-convict and an alcoholic, died age 75 at Dunwich Benevolent asylum in 1890. 
In 1899 there was a big court case – dispute over property – between the Heirdsfield family and the Qualtroughs (Emma’s sister’s family): 

20 June http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3695944  
21 June http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3695991  
22 June http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3696109  
23 June http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3696152  
29 June http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3696513  
18 July http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3697758  
6 Sept http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3701049  

Also see http://www.qualtrough.org/articles/articles-australia/brisbane-court-1899.html 

WADE, Elizabeth 
Matilda 

27 Domestic 
servant 

London, Eng Step-Mother on 
Board (Mary 
Ball); also sister 
and stepsisters; 
In Quarantine on 
26 Sept list 

B C of E Daughter of John and Charlotte Wade; her stepmother Mary Ball and Mary’s husband Joseph William Ball were on board. Elizabeth was baptised at Rainham, 
Essex, on 4 May, 1823. 

Married William Qualtrough in Brisbane on 12 April 1851 (Blacksmith of South Brisbane) 
In 1853 he bought land alongside the Brisbane River in the Parish of South Brisbane, County of Stanley, for £32. He also purchased an allotment on Shore Street 
in the Town of Cleveland, land in Peel Street, South Brisbane, Stanley Quay, and later 18 acres in the area now known as Woolloongabba. Elizabeth also had 
extensive land holdings in her own name. 

The Qualtroughs lived in a timber home in Stanley Street; 
Elizabeth’s children: 

• William J. Qualtrough, was born at South Brisbane in 1855: William was a drinker; on 25 August, 1885 he died of cirrhosis and a stomach 

haemorrhage in his family home in Stanley Street. He was unmarried and only 29 years old.   

• Walter Henry (1859): he was for a time a journalist for the Brisbane Observer. Later he operated a plumbing and gas fitting business in Creek 
Street. Walter Qualtrough never married, and died in 1910. 

• Albert Richard (1861); Albert was a chemist, and the only child of Elizabeth to marry and have children of his own. 
 

In 1867 William Qualtrough senior put himself forward as a candidate for the Brisbane Municipal Council (unsuccessful); he died from ‘dropsy with heart 
disease’ in 1870, at the age of only 46. 
 

Qualtrough Street in Woolloongabba, is named after William senior; 

See court case in notes on Emma Wade. 

Elizabeth Matilda Qualtrough, nee Wade, died in her Stanley Street home in 1903, of a cerebral haemorrhage. Elizabeth was buried in the South 

Brisbane Cemetery (Dutton Park) with her husband and son William.  

See: http://www.qualtrough.org/index.htm 

WALLACE, Julia 20 Domestic 
servant 

Co. Tipperary, 
Ireland  

Parents Michael 
& Bridget 
WALLACE 

N RC [Was named as Juely Wallace on Embarkation list] 

WALSH, Catherine 25 Domestic 
servant 

Co. Tipperary, 
Ireland 

Parents Dennis 
and Ann Walsh, 
father living in 
Co. Tipperary;   
Sister Alice 
Slattery on 

R RC 26 June 1851 Catherine ‘Walshe’ married George Brinchley at Ipswich. Witnesses at wedding: Edward and Alice Slattery (her sister); 
Had a son at Ipswich 1852; more children born 1854-64 in NSW 
Died 1905 at Sydney. 

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3695944
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3695991
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3696109
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3696152
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3696513
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3697758
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3701049
http://www.qualtrough.org/index.htm


Board 

WALSH, Ellen 30 Domestic 
servant 

Co. Limerick, 
Ireland  

Parents Michael 
and Mary Walsh, 
both dead; 
Cousin in Pt 
Phillip; in 
Quarantine 
hospital 26 Sept 

N RC  At Quarantine station, was one of the emigrants employed to do the washing at the hospital; to be paid 1 shilling and 6p for her services. 

 

Single males 

Name Age/DOB Calling Native place   Read/ 
write 

Religion  Notes from Quarantine/Passenger lists/ Col Sec letters/  
And Fate after 1850 

ALLERTON, James 
(Not on 
embarkation list) 

19 Clerk Leitrim, Ireland  George & Frances, 
both living in 
Leitrim;  
Uncle in Sydney 

B C of E BDM (NSW): James Allerton married Mary Ann Lowe in Sydney 1868. marriage http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/28609095 
Children: 

• 1869: Had still-born daughter in March http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/13184037  

• 1871: Walter G D (Sydney) 

• 1873: Gilbert Lowe (Glebe) http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/63231428 
NPG shows he was a draper (NPG 19 June, 1878, p.221); ‘Retired from business’ according to death cert; 
Died 5 Feb 1882 at Millers Point, Sydney, New South Wales 
Funeral notice: Died aged 49 http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/28379408  
Champion bowls player: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/143385967  

ANDERSON, John 
(Not on 
embarkation list) 

28 Laborer Sligo, Ireland Parents John and 
Hannah, living in 
Sligo;  
Brother Thomas on 
board. In 
quarantine Hospital 
on the list of 26 
September 1850 

B Wes Robbed by Aborigines, reported in MBC 14 Dec 1850: Robbed by Aborigines http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3708496 
1853: his mother and sister arrived in NSW on the Elleborough 

ANDERSON, 
Thomas 
(Not on 
embarkation list) 

18 Laborer Sligo, Ireland Parents John and 
Hannah, living in 
Sligo;  
Brother John on 
board. In 
quarantine Hospital 
on the list of 26 
September 1850 

B Wes 1853: his mother and sister arrived in NSW on the Elleborough. 
Two of the other passengers of the Emigrant later became Thomas's brothers in law - John Barnett & William Lovell. He moved to Armidale in NSW and 
became a successful grazier; His property "Brookside" is still in the Anderson family. (Unconfirmed – from Ancestry.com) 

BADMAN, George 
(Bradman) 

18 Laborer Walton, 
Somerset, Eng 

Parents Benjamin 
and Hannah, both 
living in Walton; 
Brother in Adelaide 

B C of E Was landed at quarantine ground with inflammatory stage of fever. 
1852: Married in Ipswich to Margaret Eliza Flanagan (Ancestry tree) 
1853-1878 - had lots of children in SA 
1866: Police constable at Glenelg 
1870: Theodore Isernhagen, aged 34, was charged with obtaining £2 from George Percy Badman, at Adelaide, on the 3rd October, by means of a 
valueless cheque. The prisoner was undefended. George Percy Badman, landlord of the Buck's Head Hotel, North-terrace. 
1874: appointed as Keeper of HM Gaol at Palmerston, NT, from 1/9/1873:   http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3142638  
1875 (May): he was a Sergeant, still in NT: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3144138  
1876: On leave from Palmerston http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3145361  
1877: Very litigious: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/197705983  
Trousers stolen http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/40472034  
Son Hubert in trouble http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/159448741  
1878: charged with using insulting language ...case dismissed 

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/28609095
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/13184037
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/63231428
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/28379408
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/143385967
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3708496
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3142638
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3144138
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3145361
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/197705983
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/40472034
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/159448741


1878:   he had Margaret Abbott fined £1 plus costs for getting drunk while in his service. http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/207584797  
1879: charged with assault...case dismissed http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/204441419  
1879: informed on someone for using forged cheque: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/204439485 
1879, he had his own son, Hubert Elias Badman, charged with ‘disturbing the peace and good order of the Buck's Head Hotel’. 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/42970433   
1880: ladder stolen http://tinyurl.com/jkuh7fv  (SA Police Gazette, 27 Oct, 1880, p.196) 
1881: in court  
In 1881, he had a servant charged with absenting himself from service without leave or lawful excuse. The charge was dismissed. 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/207669714  
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/197750063  
1883: Landlord of wheatsheaf hotel 
 http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/33766337  
1889: Bought saloon in Adelaide, later sued sellers for fraudulently showing it as profitable – 1889 http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/90876924  
1899: Margaret, wife of George Percy Badman died in Adelaide  http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/29510241  
1905: died http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/208895826  

BARCLAY, Robert 22 Farm 
Laborer 

Tyrone, Ireland  Parents Isaac & 
Letitia BARCLAY 

B C of E QLD bdm: a Robert Barclay married a Jane McIntosh in 1875; 
They had a daughter in Ipswich July 1875 http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/122070118  
 

BARNETT, John 
(Or BURNETT) 

26 Cooper Westmeath, 
Ireland 

Parents Thomas and 
Isabella, both dead. 
Brother on Board 

B C of E 1851 married Isabella Anderson (sister of Emigrant passengers John and Thomas Anderson),  
Had 8 children; died 9 May 1889 in Brisbane, Queensland; 
Death: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3496306  
Buried at Toowong location 13-35-2 
 

BARNETT, James 
(Or BURNETT) 

23 Laborer Westmeath, 
Ireland 

Parents Thomas and 
Isabella, both dead. 
Brother on Board 

B C of E QLD bdm: James Barnet married Mary Ralph 1863; 
Birth certificate of his daughter Isabella in 1867 shows her father James and mother Mary nee Ralph and 2yo sister (Brisbane). Laborer 
Had 7 kids in Bris 
Died 1900 QLD ; hotel keeper; died of ‘Supus of face extension to brain’; buried Toowong, location13-3-4 

BARTLETT, Richard 24 Carpenter Haselbury, 
Somerset, Eng; 
On embarkation  
list was noted 
as R.P. Bartlett, 
selected from 
Co. Dorset  

Parents Edward and 
Edith, living in 
Somerset.  
Brother & Uncle in 
Pt Phillip 

B C of E 1857 married Sarah Edith Gullick (1839–1913) in Victoria, had 12 children; 
Richard Purchase Bartlett Died 24 Mar 1902 in Drysdale, Victoria; 
Death notice http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/139756337  
 

BROPHY, James 22 Farm 
Laborer 

Queen's 
County, Ireland  

Parents Patrick & 
Catherine BROPHY, 
both dead 

B RC Brisbane Gaol records QSA ID2917: arr. Emigrant 1850; free; from Queen's County, Ireland, RC, Laborer, admitted 3 Jan 1851 from Brisbane; 
imprisonment 48 hrs, discharged 5 Jan; conduct orderly. 
According to Queensland State Archives Item ID518885, Register - depositions (1850-1854), Brophy was taken to court by his employer Charles 
Whitmore (a shopkeeper). Whitmore had asked him to wash some lemonade bottles but he did not do the job properly; just emptied them out and put 
them upside down. Whitmore then asked him to pound some ginger, which Brophy did, but in such an ‘idle and lazy manner’ that his employer felt 
‘convinced he did not want to do his work’. When confronted, Brophy threw the ginger on the floor. The Bench required Brophy to be committed to 
Brisbane Gaol for 48 hours and return to his master’s service, and also to pay 6/6 in costs, to be deducted from his pay.  

BEANNAN, James 
(BRENNAN/ 
BRAMAN) 

28 Laborer Monaghan, 
Ireland 

 Parents James and 
Sarah both dead; 
 Cousin in Sydney 

B Pres James Brennan was one of Dr Mallon’s assistants in the hospital; he helped Mallon try to revive Elizabeth Wade after her drowning; was a witness at the 
enquiry; 
QLD BDM: James Brennan, parents unknown, aged 65, died in Brisbane 1887: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/172329207 

BUCKLEY (BUCKBY), 
James (BUGSBY) 

18 Labourer Cranford, Eng Parents John and 
Mary (nee Wood), 
both living in 
Cranford 

B C of E Was in hospital on the September 1850 list. 
14 Aug 1850 James ‘Bugley’ was landed at the quarantine station, convalescent but ‘sore from lying’. He had been an assistant in the ship’s hospital and 
was to be paid 1 shilling & 6 pence for his services at the quarantine ground. In the list of 26 Sept, he was still in quarantine. 
 
James Buckly (or Buckby) and fellow-passenger Anne Sutton married on 8 May 1851, at St John’s C of E, Brisbane. However, the immigration list shows 
an Amelia Sutton not Anne. The embarkation list shows her as Anne; August list shows Amelia, as does the September list.  
James and Anne had several children, all born in QLD between 1851 and 1876 (see below) 
In 1890, James was the General Secretary of the QLD Amalgamated Operatives’ Boot Trade Union: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3518394  

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/207584797
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/204441419
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/204439485
http://tinyurl.com/jkuh7fv
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/207669714
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/197750063
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/33766337
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/90876924
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/29510241
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/208895826
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/122070118
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3496306
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/139756337
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/172329207
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3518394


James died in 1893. Funeral notice: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3565759  
He is buried at Nundah, location 11-1-22 
 
From Rebecca Dawn Williams in Queensland Founding Families (2009) p.88: 

• Other family members emigrated after him: brother George in 1851, William in 1852, father John and siblings John, Hannah, Mary Wood and 
David in 1854 

• James and Anne lived in the ‘German Station’/Eagle Farm area now known as Nundah 

• Children: Mary (1852-1863), Elizabeth (1854), William Charles (25 Aug 1856), Alfred Wood (12 Sept 1858), Emily June (12 Mar 1861), George (3 
Apr 1863-7 Oct 1863), Arthur Sutton Henry Eli (16 Oct 1873) and Herbert Fredrick (29 Oct 1876) 

• At various times may have worked in a cartage business and as a cabman 

• After Anne’s death in 1891, he remarried, to widow Catherine Moore 
 
 

CAHILL, James 28 Farm 
Laborer 

Tipperary, 
Ireland 

Parents Michael and 
Sarah, mother living 
in Tipperary; 
3 Cousins in Sydney 

B RC Married Catherine Maunsell 6 Jan 1854 (another Emigrant passenger); 
Had lots of children (see notes for Catherine Maunsell); 
1868:  
James was a plantation overseer for the Caboolture Cotton Company which opened in about 1860 
(http://www.qgso.qld.gov.au/products/reports/triumph-tropics/triumph-tropics-1959-pt3-ch27.pdf) and failed by 1873 

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/1308493  
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/1368788  
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/70479759    

 
1878: 21 April: James died in Harcourt St, Fortitude Valley: Occupation: Government overseer; Died age 52 of English Cholera, sick 2 days; informant: son 
Michael Cahill, labourer, and Sarah Hobbins 
 
Death notices: 

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/1371545   
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/169686045  

Buried at Toowong with his wife Catherine Maunsell 

CAHILL, Anthony 24 Farm 
Laborer 

Carlow, Ireland Parents Patrick and 
Bridget, dead; 
Cousins in Sydney 

B RC May have died in Victoria in 1902 (died: Anty Cahill, father Pat Cahill, mother Bridt; bachelor) 

CHAPPLE, Robert 19 Laborer ‘Esketh’ 
(Ashcott?), 
Somerset, Eng 

 Parents John and 
Mary Chapple, 
mother living at 
Somerset; 
Attendant in the 
Hospital 

B Bapt  Looked after Dr Mitchell until he died. Was to be paid 1 shilling and 6p per day for services 

CLARK, Samuel 
(Not on 
embarkation list) 

21 Laborer Armagh, Ireland Parents Samuel and 
Jane, mother living 
in Armagh; 
Was in quarantine 
hospital on the list 
of 26 September 
1850 

B RC  

CLUNE, Matthew 
(Not on 
embarkation list) 

22 Farm 
Laborer 

County Clare, 
Ireland  

Parents John and 
Mary Clune, living in 
Co. Clare; 
Brother in Sydney 

B RC  

COLEMAN, Thomas 37 Laborer Somerset, Eng / 
Selected from 
County Hants, 
England; 

Died in Quarantine, 
26 Sep 1850 

B C of E Was one of emigrants who did the washing in the Quarantine hospital 

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3565759
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/1308493
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/1368788
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/70479759
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/1371545
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/169686045


CONNOR, John 
(Not on 
embarkation list) 

28 Laborer County Clare, 
Ireland 

Died in Quarantine 
on 31 Aug according 
to Bothwell  

B RC Death reported in MBC 7 Sept 1850 as ‘John Cannon’ 

COOKE, George 18 Laborer Gloucestershire, 
Eng 

Parents John and 
Margaret Cooke, 
living in 
Gloucestershire; 
Brother in Sydney 

B C of E Was landed at Quarantine ground 14 Aug, suffering typhus inflammatory stage 

COONEY, Thomas 28 Farm 
Laborer 

Tipperary, 
Ireland 

Charles and Mary 
Cooney. Father 
dead, mother living 
in Tipperary; 
Sisters on Board 
(Johanna and 
Margaret) 

B RC  

CORRIGAN, James 
(Not on 
embarkation list) 

20 Farm 
Laborer 

County Clare, 
Ireland 

Parents Edward and 
Bridget Corrigan, 
Mother living in 
Westmeath, 
Ireland; 
Brother in Adelaide 

B RC  

CUNNINGHAM, 
Peter 

33 Farm 
Laborer 

Westmeath, 
Ireland  

Parents Patrick and 
Mary Cunningham, 
both dead; 
Cousin in Sydney 

N RC  

DEW, Matthew 18 Laborer Galway, Ireland  Parents Matthew 
and Eliza Dew, both 
dead; 
Cousin in Pt Phillip 

N C of E  

DWYER, James 
(Not on 
embarkation list) 

24 Laborer Tipperary, 
Ireland 

Parents William and 
Mary Dwyer, both 
dead.  
In hospital on 26 
September  list 

B RC  

DONEGAN 
(DOUGAN) Hugh 
(Not on 
embarkation list) 

23 Butcher Armagh, Ireland  Parents Thomas & 
Mary DOUGAN, 
father living in 
Armagh 

B C of E 14 Aug 1850 was landed at Quarantine station recovering from fever; 
Drunkenness and having wilfully destroyed property, Ballarat 1862: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/72557271 

Married Mary Draffin in Vic, 1870. 

Death: 

Name: Hugh Dougan 
Birth Year: abt 1830 
Age: 50 
Death Place: Victoria 
Father's name: Thos 
Mother's name: Mary Hutton 
Registration Year: 1880 
Registration Place: Victoria 
Registration Number: 6728 
 

Death in Ballarat 1880 in a dray accident: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/202515475  
 

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/72557271
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/202515475


DUNN, Daniel 
(Not on 
embarkation list) 

24 Laborer Tipperary, 
Ireland 

Parents Samuel and 
Mary Dunn, both 
dead; 
Brother in Sydney 

B RC  

EAGLE, Benjamin 23 Farm 
Laborer 

London, Eng   B C of E Brisbane Gaol records QSA ID2917: he was admitted 8 Jan 1851 from Ipswich for escort to Sydney. 24 Hours solitary confinement in Bris; sent to Sydney 
29 Jan 1851; conduct orderly 
 
QLD BDM : 

Death 1893: Benjamin Eagle - - ** born England aged 68 years 
Death certificate: Died 24 September 1893 in hospital, St George. Born London, C of E, parents unknown, shepherd at St George. Been in the colony 43 
years. Died of abdominal sarcoma, had been ill several months. Unmarried. 

GOSLIN, William 23 Farm 
Laborer 

Ermington, 
Devonshire 

Parents Edward & 
Agnes GOSLIN 

B C of E A William Gosling, father Edward, died in Sydney (Manly) 1917 http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/15716275  

 

GREEDY, Martin 24 Farm 
Laborer 

Tipperary, 
Ireland 

Parents Patrick & 
Ellen GREEDY, 
mother living in 
Tipperary 

B RC Martin Greedy married Jane Crotty at Moreton Bay in 1853 in the RC church. 
Had 13 children five of whom survived. All born in the Mudgee/Cassilis region of New South Wales.  
Martin became a policeman at Cassilis. In 1855 he was dismissed from the police force for drunkenness and committing an assault whilst on duty. (NSW 
Police Gazettes) 
Land grant at Grafton 1854 

Died 1890 and is buried in the historic Gore Hill cemetery. 

HALL, Joseph 
(Not on 
embarkation list) 

21 Laborer Essex, Eng Parents Alexander 
and Ann Hall, father 
living in Essex; Was 
in hospital on the 
list of 26 September 
1850 

R C of E Incorrectly named as ‘James Hall’, emigrant, did the washing for the hospital 

HAWKINS, Timothy 32 Farm 
Laborer 

County Clare, 
Ireland  

Parents Patrick and 
Mary Hawkins, 
Mother living at Co, 
Clare; 
Brother in Pt Phillip 

B RC Victorian BDM: died 1877, aged 65, parents Patrick and Mary nee Hinchey, from County Clare, Ireland. No spouse mentioned. 
Death 1877 at Ballarat: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/199840177 
 
1901: Sought by his nephew, who says he lived in Sydney many years ago and maybe also Melbourne: 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/104511673 

HAYWARD, George 
(Not on 
embarkation list or 
other lists)  

      Died of fever at sea 
26 July, after 
entering Bass Strait 

     

HECTOR, John 23 Laborer Limerick, 
Ireland 

Died in Quarantine 
(no date) 

B RC  It was reported that on 3 September, two men died; that on 5 September, Maria Trowbridge and two other adults died; and the next day, another. The 
surgeon’s notes report numbers but not names for these days. By process of elimination it has been deduced that of the unnamed deaths on 3 
September (two males), 5 September (two) and 6 September (one), the victims were Charles Hallett, Robert Frith, John Hector, James Syrett or James 
Real 

HOBBS, David 23 Carpenter Birmingham, 
England 

Parents David and 
Jane Hobbs, mother 
living in Birmingham 

B C of E Was constantly employed on erecting and repairing buildings; often worked all night making coffins (27 in all); to be paid 1 shilling 6p per day but 
Wickham recommended he get more. Described as ‘indefatigable’ 
 

• 27 Dec 1827: Baptised in Birmingham, son of David and Jane nee Webb. 

• an unclaimed letter for David W. Hobbs is listed in the Moreton Bay Courier of 14 Dec 

• 2 Jan 1851: a James Corkan alias David Hobbs was brought before the Court of Petty Sessions in Brisbane for bathing and exposing his person in 
the street (drunk and using bad language). Fined 20s. Prisoner stated that he was a recently arrived immigrant. 

• 1 March 1852, David Hobbs married Mary Farmer (passenger of the Emigrant) in the Parish of St Lawrence, Sydney, in the County of Cumberland 

• Sept 1852, Sydney: David Hobbs charged and fined for assaulting police Sergeant Holmes. Was in company of Thomas Farmer, probably his 
brother-in-law, see:  

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/114836668 

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/15716275
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/199840177
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/104511673
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/114836668


http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/60132485  

• 1852:     daughter Mary J. born in NSW  (Sydney) 

• 1853:     Baby Mary J. died 

• 1854:     son Thomas Henry born in NSW (Sydney); baptised  11 Jun 1854 - St. Lawrence Sydney, New South Wales, Australia (no death record 
found but he predeceased his mother) 

• 1855:     son George Farmer Hobbs born in Vic (Bdarra) 

• 1856:     George Farmer Hobbs died aged 7 months at Ballarat, of inflammation of the bowels. According to his death certificate, his father was a 
miner. 

• 1856:     John James Hobbs born in Vic (Ballarat East), parents David Hobbs, 30 y.o. miner from Birmingham, England, and Mary Farmer, from 
Langton, Leicestershire, England. Note that his birth certificate also mentions earlier issue of parents: 3 deceased (ie Mary, Thomas and George. 
This confirms that Thomas died in infancy)  

• 1858 or 1859:     Jane born (this is taken from Mary's death certificate. Registration of birth has not been found) 

• 1860:      son Alfred born in Vic (Inglewood) 

• 1861:     Alfred died in Vic (Inglewood) aged 4 months of hydrocephalus, present for 10 days. According to his death certificate, his father was a 
miner.  

• 1866: began teacher training in Victoria 

• 1867:      A David Hobbs of Ballarat spoke about temperance http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/60819731  

• 1868:     John James died in Vic of Scarlatina, sick for 4 weeks. parents David Hobbs and Mary. Father a schoolmaster  

• 1869: Qualified as a teacher, appointed to White Hills 

• 1870:  
o resigned from White Hills 
o 16 May: Appointed teacher (H.T.) Brunswick 

o 31 Dec 1870: school closed 

• 1874: A David Hobbs, teacher, was living in Brunswick, in David St (according to Sands' Directory) 
o 1 Jan: appointed assistant at school 1213 

o 26 April: transferred to Chewton, appointed head teacher; ‘an average assistant’ 

• 1876 31 March: transferred to Dunolly: 

‘Charge of neglect to impart instruction to pupil teachers’; DH replied to charge; Assistant Inspector Tynan reported on charge, gave caution and 

warning; fined £5 

‘Industrious, fairly smart, and shows good knowledge of approved methods’ 

20 Nov: ‘Did not appear to advantage at this inspection. He urged that he was suffering from illness and domestic troubles – and that he had not 

had the same heart in his work since the Department “robbed him of £50 a year”’ 

• 1877: 8 Nov: ‘industrious, generally useful’ 

• 1878 (at Philp): 7 Aug: ‘on the whole the school is conducted in a satisfactory manner’ 

• 1879 (Philp): 7 Aug: ‘a very fair teacher but inferior as an organiser and disciplinarian’ 

• 1880 (Philp): 2 Aug: ‘appears to be conducting his school rather better’ 

• 1881:    Was head teacher at Dunolly, Vic: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/219329449 

Suspended for intoxication. Reports sustained. ‘Again pointed out to him faults in the teaching and managing of his school have been over and 

over’. To be removed to a small school and given a temporary position until a permanent one can be found. Was going to be dismissed but a 

final trial in a small school was allowed 

1881-1882: Teacher at Hepburn. Described as ‘a fair and painstaking teacher’; ‘Old-fashioned and hardworking. Suitable for this school’; ‘Honest 

and painstaking’ 

• 1883, Sept: Head teacher at Darnum, Gippsland, Dismissed for 

intemperance   http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/23347523 & http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/150386941/17689142’ 

• 11 Sept: school closed, and absence of H.T. due to drunkenness. Dismissed 13 Sept for drunkenness and neglect of duty. [NB most of teaching 

notes are from PROV: VPRS13579, P0001, Unit 4, David Hobbs (Teacher record number 1017)] 

• 1883:     20 Sept: admitted to Maitland Gaol, being of 'unsound mind' 

• 1886: lectures on intemperance from a 'reformed infidel' David Hobbs at Camperdown, (Maybe not the same guy?) 

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/60132485
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/60819731
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/219329449
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/23347523
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/150386941/17689142


NSW: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/107314318 

• In the late 1880s and early 1890s a David Hobbs was living in Camperdown NSW (see Sands Directory) and had lots of govt appointments. This 

may or may not have been the same man but the timeline fits. See: 

o 1889, 14 May: Appointed Deputy Inspector of Nuisances for Borough of Camperdown, NSW [NSW Gov Gazette Apr-June 1889 p.3859] 

o 1889, 28 May:  Appointed Deputy Inspector of Nuisances for Borough of Camperdown, NSW [NSW Gov Gazette Apr-June 1889 p.3939] 

o 1891, 18 Dec:  Appointed Deputy Secretary to the Camperdown Public Park Trust and Deputy Ranger of the Camperdown Public 

Park [NSW Gov Gazette Nov-Dec 1891, p.10007] 

o 1892, 16 May: Inspector of Nuisances for Borough of Camperdown, NSW [NSW Gov Gazette [NSW Gov Gazette May-Jun 1892, p. 4257] 

o 1892, 23 June: Appointed Inspector of Dairies, Borough of Camperdown [[NSW Gov Gazette, Jul-Aug 1892, p.5363] 

o 1892, 29 July: Appointed Secretary to the Camperdown Park Trustees and Ranger of the Camperdown Public Park [NSW Gov Gazette Jul-

Aug 1892, p.6272] 

o 1893, 1 July: Resigned. [NSW Gov Gazette Jul-Aug 1893, p.5276] 

 

• 1896:     Admitted to Rookwood Benevolent Asylum 

• 1898:     Admitted to Rookwood Benevolent Asylum 17/9/1898; discharged on request 27/9/1898 

• 1899:     Admitted to Rookwood Benevolent Asylum 16/6/1899 

• 1900:      Wife Mary Hobbs died in Victoria 
 
 
1902:     David Hobbs Died 9:20am on 14/8/1902 of heart disease, stricture of urethra, chronic cystitis  

HOWE, Robert 19 Farm 
Laborer 

Shipwick, 
Somerset, 
England 

Parents Samuel and 
Maria Howe, both 
living in Co 
Somerset; 
Brother on Board 
(see Joseph) 

N C of E 24 March 1856: married Jane Rankin in Bris 
Had at least 5 children (QLD BDM) 
On list of voters for North Brisbane in 1860 (Robert How): http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3725892  
1864 Charged with wilfully and maliciously destroying a bullock; case dismissed due to lack of evidence: 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/1259655 
27 Jun 1866: died 
Funeral from Kangaroo Point in 1866: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/1270068   

HUISTON 
(HEUSTON) George 

26 Laborer Armagh/ 
selected from 
Co. Tyrone, 
Ireland  

Died in Quarantine, 
24 Aug 1850, 
6:06pm 

B C of E Was assisting with sick and dying on board ship and in hospital. Contracted typhus on board and died after landing. 
 

HUSSEY, Henry 18 Laborer Somerset, Eng From Kurryrual 
(Curry Rivel); 
Parents James and 
Jane Hussey, father 
living in Somerset; 
Was in hospital on 
list of 26 September 
1850 

N C of E 23 Sept 1853 married Margaret Boe, MBay  
12 Oct 1882 –died. Was a timbergetter at Bribie; 
Funeral notice: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/173743951 
Buried at Toowong, location 1-56-22 
 

JEFFS, Robert 
(Not on 
embarkation list) 

24 Farm 
Laborer 

Essex, Eng Parents William & 
Lydia JEFFS, father 
living in Co Essex 

R C of E  

JOHNSTON, 
Thomas 
(Not on 
embarkation list) 

18 Farm 
Laborer 

Middletown, 
Co. Armagh, 
Ireland 

Cousin in 
Parramatta 

B C of E  

KNIGHT, Thomas 19 Laborer ‘Webmore’, 
Somerset, Eng 

Parents Thomas and 
Ellen Knight, both 
living at Webmore, 
Somerset; 

B C of E A Thomas James Knight died QLD 1919…Parents unknown; born England aged 82 years…may not be the same man? 

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/107314318
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3725892
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/1259655
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/1270068
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/173743951


Sister in Adelaide 

LAPTHORNE, 
Thomas 

19 Laborer Devonshire, Eng Parents George and 
Anne Lapthorne, 
living in Co. Devon; 
 Was in hospital on 
list of 26 September 
1850 

B C of E His sister came out in 1858; 
17 June 1864: married Sarah Coleman; 1865-1881 had children ; was a blacksmith; 16 Sept 1911 died. 
Blacksmith late of Augathella: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/176342281  
 

LIVERMORE, John 
(Not on 
embarkation list) 

24 Laborer Essex, Eng/ 
From 
‘Radwater’, Co. 
Essex, England; 

Parents John and 
Isabella Livermore, 
both living in 
Radwater; Cousin in 
Sydney; 
Was in hospital on 
list of 26 September 
1850 

N C of E Married Elizabeth Franklin (1832–1897) 27 Aug 1853 at Mulgoa, Penrith, New South Wales;  
had 1 son in Penrith; died 1912 in Cargo, NSW (From Ancestry.com) 
According to his son James’ obituary (1918 at Cargo), they came to Cargo around 1878: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/101028294  
Obituary 1912 ‘oldest and most respected residents’ died from rheumatism; died peacefully at home; had farmed at Penrith 18 years, went into mining 
at Cargo; 6 sons and 5 daughters; wife predeceased him by 15 years;  
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/101025603 

LOVELL, William 21 Laborer Cranford, 
Northampton, 
Eng 

Parents Samuel and 
Sarah Lovell, both 
living in Cranford; 
Sister on Board (not 
identified) 
Was in hospital on 
list of 26 September 
1850  

B C of E Married Eliza Anderson (sister of Emigrant passengers Thomas and John Anderson) in Moreton Bay in 24 Aug 1855; Witnesses: Thomas Anderson and 
WJK Piddington; had 6 children; died 8 Feb 1906 at Sandgate, Brisbane, Queensland. 
http://person.ancestry.com.au/tree/22070171/person/1189014911/facts; 
Died after a ‘lingering illness’ aged 77 http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/19435590  
Funeral notice: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/19434205   
Will: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/176330995  
Buried at Toowong 9/2/1906 location 13-35-1 

LYON, Francis 29 Shoe 
Maker 

Cranford, 
Northampton, 
Eng 

Parents William and 
Mary Lyon, both 
dead; 
Sister on Board 
(Anne); 
Was in hospital on 
list of 26 September 
1850 

B C of E Witness at enquiry into Elizabeth Wade’s death; 
23 Dec 1850 married Martha Loder in Bris (also passenger on Emigrant) 
1851-1864 had children;  
Was a farmer at Oxley 1868; 
Court action against him for breach of agreement on purchase of land 1892 http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3541262  
Death of Francis Dexter Lyon at Moorooka in 1909:  http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/176127202  
Buried at South Brisbane with wife 16/5/1909 location 4A-111 (misspelled Frances) 
 

McDONALD, John 20 Shepherd Inverness, 
Scotland 

Parents John and 
Christina McDonald, 
both living in 
Aberdeen; 
Uncle in Pt Phillip; 
Was in hospital on 
list of 26 September 
1850 

B Pres  

Maunsell / 
MANSELL, Patrick 

23 Gardener Limerick, 
Ireland 

Parents James and 
Kate; 
Sister (Catherine) 
on Board 

B RC Special mention for services – helping the surgeon. Highly praised; to be paid 1 shilling 6 pence per day. 
 
Worked as a servant for Henry Twiss, publican at the Logan Hotel in South Brisbane. http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3713269 ; 
 
Patrick Maunsell was named as a police constable in depositions relating to Robert McCoy (drunkenness and assault) in QSA Item ID518885, Register - 
depositions (1850-1854); also case of Daniel Hearn 27 November (tearing Constable Maunsell’s shirt) and many other cases. He was officially sworn in on 
17 Feb 1852. His name was not on the list of police officers sworn in in January 1853 (P.200 of PDF), which suggests he had left the force. 
 
In 1852, he bought land in Brisbane for £22 10s.   
 
6 September 1853: Patrick Maunsell acquired a publican’s licence [QSA ID518885, p.249 of PDF] 
 
4 Oct 1853: PM fined £5 and 8/6 costs for breach of licensing act. [QSA ID518885, p.254 of PDF] 
 

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/176342281
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/101028294
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/101025603
http://person.ancestry.com.au/tree/22070171/person/1189014911/facts
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/19435590
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/19434205
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/176330995
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3541262
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/176127202
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3713269


By 1854 he had established the Queen’s Head Hotel and acquired staff. In July 1854 he reported suspicions – a customer had a bundle of clothes that he 
was trying to sell – suspected stolen – Maunsell appeared in Court as a witness [QSA ID518885, p.322-324 of PDF] 
 
In 1855 he sold the hotel and announced his intention to leave the district ‘for some time’.   
 
Patrick and Catherine’s brother, James, emigrated to Australia sometime during the early 1850s, leaving his wife, Alice, and their son, Stephen (aged 4), 

behind in Ireland. It was Patrick who paid the £22 to sponsor Alice and Stephen’s passage so that they could reunite with James in Moreton Bay in 1856. 

At the same time, Patrick also sponsored his younger brother, John. In 1858, their parents, 21-year-old John and 19-year-old sister, Margaret, also joined 

the family in NSW. 

 
By 1857 he was back in Brisbane. He owned both a ‘four-roomed cottage, with detached kitchen containing a servant's apartment and brick oven’ii in 
Charlotte Street and 78 acres of land at Kedron Brook. http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3720790  
 
Married Margaret Sweeney at St Mary’s Cathedral, Sydney, in 1858 
 
Returned to Brisbane; They continued to let out the Charlotte Street cottage, offering ‘board and lodging, with all the advantages of a comfortable 
home’ to four single men, while Patrick worked as a gardener. 
 
Children: 

• James b.1860 

• Catherine b.1862 

• Ellen b.1864, d.1867 

• Edward John b.1867 

• Stephen Michael b.1869 

• Helen – b. 1872 
 

By 1862 he was advertising to let a six-room house with detached kitchen and servants’ room, and by the next year an eight-room house, all in Charlotte 

Street. By 1866 his wife was advertising for a servant and by 1867 he was seeking tenants for the ‘European Boarding House’ in Charlotte-street, a 

property that boasted 12 rooms and ‘water laid on’. 

1867, a fire broke out in his ‘European Boarding House’ – believed to have been lit maliciously http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/13163242  
 

From 1868, Patrick lived on the corner of Grey Street and Melbourne Street in South Brisbane, and worked variously as a gardener and a carpenter. (Post 

office directories) 

1870: on committee of Brisbane Council http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/27263948 

Property in Melbourne St, South Brisbane: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/1335698  

Feb 1873: Nominated David Grayson for Alderman http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/27274645 

Oct 1873: assaulted his wife. Remanded; his wife wouldn’t testify; released without charge.  
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/1328867 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/169484591   

In June 1875, he was arrested for drunkenness and confined to the lock-up – his leg was broken http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/169479937 
1875: Patrick had been implicated in a shady deal involving a Brisbane Councillor.  

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/13355497 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/18335651   
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/18335451  

1877: Boarding House http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/1364380 
5 Feb 1880: committed suicide by cutting his own throat: http://nla.gov.au/nla.news-article183949015  
http://nla.gov.au/nla.news-article183375248 
http://nla.gov.au/nla.news-article20705146  
1916: Margaret Maunsell nee Sweeney died: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/181545703  
 

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3720790
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http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/27274645
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http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/181545703


Patrick Buried at Toowong, location 7-45-12 
 

MONTEATH, 
Joseph 

23 Laborer Co. Tyrone, 
Ireland 

Parents Hugh & Ann 
MONTEITH, both 
living in Co. Tyrone 

B RC A Joseph Monteith, parents Hugh and Nancy, died in NSW 1903; death registered at Bingera (Australian Death Index). May be the same person. 
1903 (August ) kicked by horse and got arm broken in Guyra, http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/188991130  
A week later was recovering: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/173605121  
November 1903 died after short illness at Guyra, aged 80: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/7148830 

MULVEHILL, 
Matthew 

21 Farm 
Laborer 

Co. Galway, 
Ireland  

Parents Michael and 
Mary Mulvehill, 
both living in 
Galway; 
Cousin in Sydney 

B RC Appointed police supernumerary 1868 (NPG 5 Feb 1868 p.43) 
 

QUINLAN, Michael 20 Laborer Tipperary, 
Ireland 

Parents Patrick and 
Catherine nee 
Wade, father living 
in Tipp. 
Was in Hospital on 
list of September 
1850. 

B RC • “Michael Quinlan aged 22 years was sworn in a Constable for the Town and District of Brisbane on the 19th day of May 1851 before us…” [From 
Queensland State Archives Item ID518885, Register - depositions (1850-1854)] 

15 May 1903: died:  
According to death certificate: 

• father Patrick, mother Catherine nee Wade 

• Died 15 May 1903 at Dunwich Benevolent Asylum 

• Age 77 

• Died from senile degeneration, rheumatic gout, 

• Buried 17 May at Dunwich cemetery 

• From Tipperary, 53 years in QLD, NSW, NZ and Vic 

• Married Catherine Wade in Melbourne, Vic, when he was 24 (ie c1854) 

• No living issue, 1 dead. 
(Note that both his mother and wife’s names are given as Catherine Wade – this is a mistake. According to his admission notes to Dunwich Benevolent 
Asylum, he married Bridget Quinlan at age 24) 
Admitted to Dunwich Benevolent Asylum on 4 Sept 1890. According to his admission notes from QSA Item ID298727 Register - admissions, benevolent 
asylum (1889-1894): 

• Reason for admission: Rheumatism 

• Age: 64 

• From Tipperary 

• RC, R & W 

• Labourer 

• Parents Patrick Quinlan and Catherine Wade 

• Was married at age 24 to Bridget Quinlan (deceased) in Melbourne 

• Had 1 child (dcd) 

• No relatives 

• No property 

• Came to QLD 40 years ago, ship ‘Emigrant’, visited NSW, Vic and NZ 

• For past 3 years he had been keeping a small store at Woolloongabba 

• Last seen by medical superintendent 14 May 1903 

• Died 15 May 1903 
See also QLD Gov Gazette Sep-Dec 1890, p.167 (QSA film Z2964) 
Died at Dunwich Benevolent Asylum: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/19224991  
 

ROWE, Joseph 
(Not on 
embarkation list) 

27 Laborer Somerset, Eng Died in Quarantine, 
23 Aug 1850, 
1:30am 

B C of E  

RYAN, John 
(Not on 
embarkation list) 

25 Farm 
Laborer 

Co. Tipperary, 
Ireland 

Parents Thomas & 
Ellen RYAN, both 
dead 

B RC 14 Aug 1850 landed at Quarantine station in inflammatory stage 
 
NOTE: The details of John Ryan and Patrick Ryan (below) may have been confused due to clerical errors. A Thomas John Ryan, parents William and 
Catherine Ryan, of Tipperary, married fellow-passenger Julia McMahon as shown below. It is unclear whether this ‘Thomas John Ryan’ was actually 
‘John’ Ryan or ‘Patrick Ryan’. See photograph under Julia McMahon 

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/188991130
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/173605121
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/7148830
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/19224991


RYAN, Patrick 
(Not on 
embarkation list) 

23 Farm 
Laborer 

Co. Tipperary, 
Ireland 

Parents John and 
Catherine Ryan, 
both living in 
Tipperary;  
Uncle in Sydney 

B RC http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3567323 
 
From Kevin and Pat Haley: 

• Thomas John Ryan the eldest son of William Ryan and his wife Catherine (née Hannon) was born on the townland of Ballycohey in the civil parish 
Shronell, County Tipperary, Ireland on Christmas Eve 1824. 

• Married Julia McMahon, fellow-passenger of the Emigrant in St Mary’s Catholic Church in Ipswich on 27 February 1851.  Emigrant passengers 
Ellen Real and her eldest son James witnessed the wedding. 

• On the 26 October 1851, Julia gave birth to twins, Thomas and Catherine (Thomas’s sponsors were Emigrant passengers Edmond and Alice 
Slattery; Catherine’s were Edmond’s son Thomas and Catherine Real) 

• Catherine died aged 16 months in February 1853 

• Another daughter named Catherine born 9 August 1853; sponsors were Emigrant passengers Daniel Lynch and Eliza Dobe/ Daube 

• Ryans lived in Bell St, Ipswich, Thomas working as a labourer 

• Children:  
o John Patrick was born on 28 November 1854;  
o Michael Patrick on 3 February 1857; and  
o Mary on 24 July 1859. 

• 1859: Thomas took up work as a shepherd on Emu Creek Station, an out-station of Canning Downs 

• Their daughter Mary she died three days after a scalding accident in the kitchen, aged almost 2 

• In September 1856 Thomas Ryan selected Lots 4, 5 and 6, totalling 182 acres, east of  Warwick Agricultural Reserve.   

• twins Eliza and William born on 13 December 1865 

• 1865: Thomas learned that his sister, Mary, was living in Melbourne and he travelled there in 1866 to see her. A reconciliation (by mail) with his 
aging widowed father followed 

• James was born on 27 December 1867 

• In July 1873 Thomas selected two adjacent parcels of land totalling 800 acres in vicinity of Emu Vale and Tannymorel. The area became known as 
Danderoo. There they built a home and named the property ‘Golden Vale’ 

• Thomas died on 9 October 1893 

• Julia died on 8 March 1907 
See photograph under Julia McMahon 
 

SHEAR, John 25 Butcher Sandford, Co. 
Somerset, Eng 

Parents Robert and 
Jane Shears, both 
living in Co. 
Somerset; 
Was in hospital on 
list of September 
1850  

B C of E Also Shears and Shean; was a hospital attendant at Quarantine station; to be paid 1 shilling and 6p per day for services; with John Tolman, JC Foote and 
James Foote, carried body of Eliz Wade from the sea on iron bedstead;  
13 Sept was a patient at Q hospital; still a patient on 26 Sept; 
Married Elizabeth Wain in QLD in 1863; had 4 daughters in QLD; wife died 1918; 
 
11 Sept 1852 was working for John Orr, butcher, of South Brisbane; lived in a hut with other employees, where Orr stored hams and bacon (MBC 11 Sept 
1852). Shears was apprehended of suspicion of stealing hams and bacon but charges dismissed due to lack of evidence. 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3710966  
 
Died in March 1915, in Gramzow, QLD http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/20033738  
‘Mr. John, Shears, one of the oldest pioneers of the district, died at Gramzow yesterday (writes our district representative under Monday's date)? He 
arrived in Queensland in the year 1849 in the first immigrant ship, known as "The Old Emigrant." Three hundred embarked, but owing to sickness only 
60 saw' the new land. Mr., Shears first went to the Coomera district, and then to Mount Cotton. He was approaching ¡his 94th year when he passed 
away surrounded by his relatives. In 1913 he celebrated ¡his golden wedding; (Brisbane Courier, 16 March 1915, p.9) 
 

SHERIDAN, 
Matthew 

19 
 
(17 
according 
to 
Ancestry) 

Laborer County Meath, 
Ireland 

Parents Bryan and 
Margaret Sheridan, 
father living in Co. 
Meath;  
Cousin in Sydney 

B RC 22 Aug 1850 was a witness at enquiry into death of Elizabeth Wade; 
According to Ancestry.com (unconfirmed): 

Married Ellen Quirk 1854 in Sydney 
Had 10 kids  
Lived in Wangaratta, Vic, for many years;  
Died in 1911 at Londrigan, near Wangaratta 

 
Death notice http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/71576887  
 

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3567323
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3710966
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/20033738
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/71576887


SHORT, William 24 Laborer Co. Armagh, 
Ireland 

Parents James & 
Rachel SHORT, both 
living in Co. Armagh 

B Pres 22 Aug 1850 was a witness at enquiry into death of Elizabeth Wade; 
According to Australian Death Index: 

Name: Wm Francis Short 
Birth year: abt 1826 
Age: 80 
Death place: Cham, Victoria 
Father’s name: Short Jas 
Mother’s name: Rach Whitton 
Reg year: 1906 
Reg place: Victoria 

Probate http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/189378204  
Death notice: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/139187408 
No evidence of marriage 
Carriage proprietors licence Vic 1853 http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/4791552  
Ran the Armagh Hotel on Brighton Road, had servants (1863) http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/6485025  
Publican’s Licence granted 1857 http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/154821016 

SMITH, Thomas 20 Laborer Milbourne, Co. 
Cambridge, Eng 

Parents John and 
Mary Smith, both 
living in Milbourne; 
Brother in Pt Phillip; 
In Q Hospital 26 
Sept  

B Pres Was not on Embarkation list but a William Smith, 20, labourer, of Cambridge, was on the Embarkation list and not arrival lists – so they may have been 
the same person 
 

TOLMAN, James 23 Farm 
Laborer 

Moorlinch, Co. 
Somerset, Eng 

Parents James and 
Sarah Tolman, 
mother living in 
Moorlinch; Brother 
on Board (John); 
In Quarantine 
Hospital 26 Sept list 

B C of E 14 Aug landed at Quarantine ground recovering from fever; 26 Sept was in Quarantine hospital  
1851 was employed by Mr John Collins at Moondoolun, Moreton District 
3 July 1852, accidentally drowned: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3711413 
 
From Jenny Harkness in Queensland Founding Families (2009) p.656: 

• Was the fourth child in the family 

• Baptised 19 Aug 1827 at Moorlinch 

TOLMAN, John 26 Farm 
Laborer 

Moorlinch, Co. 
Somerset, Eng 

Parents James and 
Sarah Tolman, 
mother living in 
Moorlinch; Brother 
on Board (James); 
In Quarantine 
Hospital 26 Sept list 

B C of E He helped carry Eliz Wade’s body to Q ground from the sea; 
According to Jenny Harkness in Queensland Founding Families (2009) p.657, soon after arrival, John worked as a carpenter with Mr Wassall on the prison 
hulk in Moreton Island. 
 
On 5 September 1853, he married Mary Gorman, daughter of Daniel and Mary nee Ryan, who were also passengers on the Emigrant; Mary was only 15. 
By 1854 he had a freehold in Brisbane’s Eastern suburbs 
Shipbuilder in Brisbane 1858 http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3716658  
1867: insolvent shipwright. He lived in Stanley St, South Brisbane, and had mortgaged rental properties – 2 cottages on land at Cleveland, and 2 cottages 
on land at Ernest St, South Brisbane. He had to sell these when he became insolvent. 
 
Children with Mary Gorman: 

• 1854 – 1941:  Sarah 

• 1856 – 1899:  Mary Ann 

• 1859 - ?  Daniel James 

• 1861 – 1913:  Harriet 

• 1864 – 1902: John 

• 1866 – 1935:  Thomas Day 

• 1868 – 1919:  Robert 

• 1870 – 1871:  William Joseph (b. 25 Nov 1870) 
1871: Mary Gorman died of uterine cancer at One Mile Swamp (now Woolloongabba), soon after her baby son died 
25 June 1872: John Tolman married Mary Jane Whiteford McKernan in Brisbane. She had an illegitimate son, Walter Edwin Patrick Whiteford, born 23 
May 1871. No father is named on his birth certificate. His death certificate claims his father was John Tolman. However, Mary Jane’s death certificate 
states that before she wed John Tolman, she was married in Brisbane to ‘Massey’ and bore him a child, Walter Massey. The marriage did not take place 
but the boy’s father may have been a man named ‘Massey’. Mary Jane Whiteford was a newly-arrived 20-year-old Irish servant when she fell pregnant; 
she gave birth to Walter while living at the Servants’ Home in Ann Street. Walter probably knew no other father and considered John Tolman to be his 
father, whether or not he was biologically. 

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/189378204
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/139187408
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/4791552
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/6485025
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/154821016
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3711413
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3716658


Walter’s death in 1917: 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/216890004  
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/176388468  

 
Children with Mary Jane Whiteford: 
 

• [1872 – 1917: Walter Edwin Patrick] 

• 1873 – 1906: David Archibald 

• 1875 – 1900: Margaret Josephine 

• 1878 – 1879: Joseph Henry 

• 1880 – 1928:  Lydia Ellen Ann (m. Turner; died WA) (according to Jenny Harkness in Queensland Founding Families (2009) p.657) 

• 1884 – 1944: Elsie Violet (m. Bruce 1907) 

• 1888 – 1889: Leah Marion Pauline Jane 

Separated from Mary Jane; Won’t be responsible for debts of wife, 1878: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/1373349 
Seriously assaulted his wife 1878: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/169690976 
1889, Sept: Mary Jane drunk and disorderly http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/177612225 & 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3501632 ; violent http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3501146 & 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/177613238  
1891, April: Mary Jane drunk and using indecent language http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/172679134 
 
Appears to have reunited with his wife. The pair moved north and John was based at Thursday Island. 
1897 wife Mary Jane died at Thursday Island from chronic alcoholism, heart failure and anasarca. Aged 47, though her death certificate gives age of 42. 
John was admitted to Dunwich Benevolent Asylum on 13 August 1896 at age 72. He lived there with short breaks until 28 Feb 1900. Had no money and 
no property. Admission record lists his children. He had no knowledge of the whereabouts of 2 of his children from his first marriage (Daniel James & 
Mary Ann Leahy) and didn’t even mention Thomas Day and John (first marriage) or David (2nd marriage) 

Absent on leave Feby24th to Mar 9th 1897 

Absent on leave Aug 10th to 18th 1897 

Absent on leave Dec 21 1897 to January 5th 1898 

Discharged July , 1898.  

Readmitted May 9th 1899. Discharged 28 February 1900. 

 
5 Aug 1907: John died in Townsville from ‘senile exhaustion’ and heart failure. 
 
 ‘John used Thursday Island as a base and became the master of a pearling lugger. Two of his sons from his first marriage, John jnr and Robert, and 
Walter from the second marriage, together with a number of Pacific Islanders, dived for their father.’ 
From Dougald J Stanley in Queensland Founding Families (2009) p.656. I have not found evidence that he was master of a pearling lugger. This may have 
been his son. John Tolman snr is only ever listed as a shipwright or carpenter in official documents I have seen (BDM, insolvency records, Benevolent 
Asylum admission) 
Son John Tolman was involved in salvage dives for the wreck of the Quetta. 
 

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/216890004
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/176388468
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/1373349
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/169690976
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/177612225
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3501632
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3501146
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/177613238
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/172679134


 
From Queensland Founding Families (2009) p.656. 

WELLS, George 19 Laborer Cranford, 
Northampton, 
Eng 

Parents John and 
Fanny Wells, both 
dead; 
 In Quarantine 
Hospital on list of 
September 1850 

B C of E Quarantine hospital attendant; to be paid 1 shilling and 6p per day for services 

WELSH, James (or 
WELCH) 

21 Mason & 
Laborer 

“Yaulvul’ 
(Yeovil) 
Somerset 

Parents James and 
Martha Welsh, 
mother living in Co. 
Somerset; 
 Attendant (cook?) 
in the Quarantine 
hospital; 
In Quarantine 
Hospital on list of 
September 1850 

B C of E Was cook at Q station; to be paid 1 shilling and 6p per day for services; 
2 Dec 1850, married Ann Campbell, passenger of Emigrant,(who had been a nurse in Quarantine); witnesses of the marriage were Michael and Mary 
Maloney who were also passengers 
“James Welsh charged with indecently exposing his person in Queen Street Brisbane on the 24th instant. Pleaded guilty. Fined five pounds.” – 26 June 
1851, from Queensland State Archives Item ID518885, Register - depositions (1850-1854). 
1851-1864 had children in QLD 
Wife Ann died 1909; 
16 Jan 1912: James died at Cleveland. Funeral notice: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/19723653 
 
Death notice says he was a ‘Retired storeman’ 1912 http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/175225652 
 
See also notes on Ann Campbell 
Death certificate of James Welch shows: 

Died 16 January 1912 at Channel St, Cleveland 
Laborer 
Cause of death: Senile debility, heart disease, heart failure; duration of illness 3 years 
Buried 17 Jan at Ormiston 
Born at Taunton, Somerset, England 
60 years or more in QLD 
Married in Brisbane to Anne Campbell at age 21 
Issue:  

• Rebecca 59 

• James 54 

• Frederick 52 

• Martha 50 

• Elizabeth 47 

• Dead: 1 female 

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/19723653
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/175225652


 
From Living pioneer colonists’ issue of The Queenslander, 7 Aug 1909, p.60 (no.36) 
http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/21829670/2496692 
 

WILLIAMS, John 38 Laborer ‘Curryrual’ 
(Curry Rival), 
Co. Somerset, 
Eng 

Parents John and 
Betty Williams, both 
dead; 
In Quarantine 
Hospital on list of 
September 1850 

B C of E Was a hospital attendant at the Q station, to be paid 1 shilling and 6p per day for services 

WRIGHT, Joseph 
(Not on 
embarkation list) 

21 Farm 
Laborer 

Radwinter, Co. 
Essex, Eng 

Parents Samuel and 
Sarah; mother living 
in ‘Wimbish’?; 
In Quarantine 
Hospital on list of 
September 1850 

R C of E Brisbane Gaol records QSA ID2917: arr Emigrant 1850, free, from England; Protestant, laborer, admitted 12 Aug 1851 from Ipswich, to pay a fine of 10 
pounds or be imprisoned in Brisbane Gaol 2 calendar months; discharged 11 Oct 1851. Conduct orderly. 
Was charged with being drunk and disorderly on 20 April 1852 (arrested by Patrick Maunsell) – was fined; also charged with drunkenness on 27 June 
1853, pleaded guilty and was fined 5 shillings [QSA ID518885 – Depositions] 

 

OTHERS associated with the Emigrant’s 1850 voyage 

LANCASTER, James   Supernum
erary 
Seaman 

  Died at sea, 31 July    

WARD?   Seaman   In hospital   Landed at Quarantine station 14 Aug with low fever, typhus (according to Col Sec letters of 23 August) 
An Edward Ward, ship Emigrant 1850, from ‘Deptford near London’ was admitted to Brisbane Gaol on 18 March 1851. 

MITCHELL, George   Doctor   Died 19 Sep   Born c1825 Clady Beg, Market Hill, Co. Armagh; parents Alexander A. Mitchell and Jane cee McMullen. 
Studied at Belfast, Dublin and Edinburgh. 
Previous voyage on Osprey as ship’s surgeon, 1849. http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3710146 
Fell sick as ship arrived in Moreton Bay. Suffered for about 6 weeks 

http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3710146


YOUNG, Charles 
 

Seaman Cork, Ireland 
 

RC Absconded with James Hall - MBC: 21 Sept 1850, p.2 : http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3715057  
 
Brisbane Gaol records at QSA, ID2917: Charles Young, arrived on Emigrant 1850, free, seaman, admitted 12 Nov 1850 from Brisbane Bench; 
imprisonment 14 days with hard labor; discharged 26 Nov 1850; conduct orderly 
 
 

John Brooks? 
 

laborer England 
 

C of E QSA Brisbane Gaol records ID 2917: arr Emigrant 1850, free, admitted 5 Oct 1852 from Ipswich, fined 2 pounds or one calendar month imprisonment; 
discharged 2 Nov, conduct orderly. Not on passenger list. Could he have been a seaman? 

James Hall  Seaman Liverpool, Eng  Prot Absconded with Charles Young - MBC: 21 Sept 1850, p.2 : http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3715057 ; was admitted to Brisbane Gaol on 12 
November; tried by Brisbane Bench, sentenced to 14 days’ hard labour; discharged 26 November. 
 
Married Emigrant passenger Mary Ann Mahoney on 25 March 1851 in Brisbane 
 
Had 10 children, died in QLD 1895 of ‘Mental worry atheromatous arteries cerebral haemorrhage’. 
Death notice: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/21630249  
Will of James Hall, mariner: http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/173748615  
Funeral http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3598394 
 
See photo: https://members.tip.net.au/~phodge/emigrant.htm 
 

ROBERTS, Henry   Cook on 
the 
emigrant 

  Died in quarantine 
31 Aug 

  Death reported in MBC http://trove.nla.gov.au/newspaper/article/3716011 

  

    

 

 
i (1888, 29 Oct). Newcastle Morning Herald 
ii (1857, 14 Feb). The Moreton Bay Courier, p.1. 
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